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Nawrocki Smith LLP 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AU DITO RS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Supervisor and Town Board of the 
Town of Southampton: 

We have audited the accompanying f inancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Southampton (the ''Town'') , as of and for the year ended December 31 , 2008, which 
col lectively comprise the Town's basic f inancial statements as l isted in  the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibi l ity of the Town's management. Our responsib i l ity is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our aud it. 

Except as d iscussed in  the fol lowing paragraph,  we conducted our aud it in  accordance with audit ing standards 
general ly accepted in the Un ited States of America and the standards appl icable to financial audits contained 
in  Government Audit ing Standards, issued by the Comptrol ler General of the U n ited States. Those standards 
requ i re that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material m isstatement. An audit includes examin ing,  on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and d isclosures in the f inancial statements . An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting pri nciples used and the sign if icant estimates m ade by management, as wel l  as evaluating the 
overal l  f inancial statement presentation . We bel ieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opin ion. 

As more fu l ly d isclosed i n  Note 1 to the financial statements, the Town has not completed a forensic 
investigation of the Capital Projects Fund for the fiscal years 2003 through 2007, and we were unable to apply 
sufficient alternative procedures to determ ine the effects, if any, on the Town's opening fund balances i n  the 
General Fund and Capital Projects Fund and the opening net assets in the E nterprise Funds. 

I n  our  opin ion,  except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as m ight have been determ ined to be 
necessary had we been able to apply sufficient procedures related to the matter d iscussed in the preceding 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fai rly, i n  a l l  material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the d iscretely presented 
component un it, each major fund, and the aggregate rem aining fund information of the Town of Southampton 
as of December 31 , 2008, and the respective changes in f inancial posit ion, and cash f lows, where appl icab le, 
thereof for the year then ended i n  conform ity with accounting principles general ly accepted in  the Un ited 
States of America. 

In accordance with Government Aud it ing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 
2009, on our consideration of the Town's internal control over f inancial reporting and on our tests of its 
compl iance with certain provisions of laws, regu lations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters . 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over f inancial report ing and 
compl iance and the resu lts of that testing, and not to p rovide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compl iance. That report is an i ntegral part of an audit performed in  accordance with 
Government Audit ing Standards and should be considered in  assessing the results of our audit .  
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Nawrocki Smith LLP 

The management's d iscussion and ana lysis and budgetary comparison information, as l isted in the table of 
contents, are not a requ i red part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information req u i red 
by accounting principles genera l ly accepted in the Un ited States of America . We have appl ied certain l im ited 
procedures, which consisted princ ipa l ly of inqu i ries of management regard ing the methods of measurement 
and presentat ion of the req u i red supplementary information. However, we d id not audit  the information and 
express no op in ion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opin ion on the fi nancial statements that collectively 
com prise the Town of Southampton's basic fi nancial statements. The accompanying supplemental 
information, as l isted in the table of contents, is presented for pu rposes of add it ional ana lysis and is not a 
requ i red part of the basic fi nancial statements. The accompanying sched ule of expend itu res of federal awards 
is presented for pu rposes of add itional ana lysis as requ i red by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circu lar 
A- 1 33, Audits of States, Local Governm ents, and Non-Profit Organ izations, and is also not a req u ired part of 
the basic financial  statements of the Town of Southampton. The su pplemental information and the sched u le 
of expenditu res of federa l  awards have been subjected to the aud it ing procedures appl ied in the aud it of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opin ion, except for the matter d iscussed in the fourth parag raph, are 
fa i rly stated in a l l  material respects in re lation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Melvi l le, New York 
December 22, 2009 
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TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31 , 2008 

The fol lowing is a d iscussion and analys is of the Town of Southampton's (the ''Town'') f inancial 
performance for the year ended December 31 , 2008. This section is a summary of the Town's financial 
activities based on currently known facts, decisions and condit ions. It is also based on both the Town­
wide and fund-based financial statements. The resu lts of the cu rrent year are d iscussed in com parison 
with the p rior year, with an emphasis p laced on the current year. This section is only an introduction and 
should be read in conjunction with the Town's f inancial statements, which immediately fol low this sect ion. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Town's total net assets, as reflected in the Town-wide financial statements, i ncreased by 
$ 1 2 ,555,385 or 2 . 1 % . This increase is primari ly due to increased real property taxes and local 
revenue sources being col lected ,  offset by the recognit ion of other post-employment benefits of 
$9,04 1 ,6 1 8  in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement 45. 

• The Town's expenses for the year, as ref lected i n  the Town-wide financial statements, totaled 
$ 1 1 0 ,455,524. Of this amount, $53,271 ,560 was offset by program charges for services and operating 
g rants. General revenues of $69,739,349 amounted to 56.7% of total revenues. 

• The Genera l  Fund's total fund balance, as reflected i n  the fund f inancial statements, was $1 0,575,234, 
which is a decrease of $3,897,288 or 26.9% as compared to the prior year (see pages 1 7  and 1 9) .  

OVERVIEW O F  THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

This annual report consists of three parts: management's d iscussion and analysis (this section) , the basic 
f inancial statements and requ i red supplementary i nformation. The basic f inancial statements i nclude two 
kinds of statements that present d ifferent views of the Town : 

• The f i rst two statements are Town-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long­
term i nform ation about the Town's overall f inancial status (see pages 1 5  and 1 6) .  

• The remain ing statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Town, 
reporti ng the Town's operations i n  more detail than the Town-wide statements (see pages 17 th rough 
23) . 

• The governmental funds statements tel l  how basic services were f inanced in the short-term as 
wel l  as what rem ains for futu re spending. 

• Proprietary funds statements provide both short-term and long-term information for the Town's 
business-type activities with the primary revenue sources being charges for services. 

• Fiduciary funds statements provide i nformation about the fi nancial relationships in which the Town 
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others (see page 24) . 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information i n  the statements and 
provide more detai led data. The statements are fol lowed by a section of requ i red supplementary 
information that further expla ins and supports the f inancial statements with a comparison of certain actual 
resu lts (General Fund, Town Outside Vi l lage Fund, H ighway Fund and Pol ice District) with the Town's 
budget for the year. 
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Reporting the Town as a Whole 

The analysis of the Town as a whole begins on page 1 5. One of the most important questions asked 
about the Town's f inances should be, " Is  the Town as a whole better off or worse off as a resu lt of the 
year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about 
the Town as a whole and about its activities in  a way that helps answer this question. These statements 
i nc lude al l  assets and l iab i l it ies using the accrual basis of accounting, which is s imi lar to the accounting 
used by most p rivate-sector companies. Al l  of the cu rrent year's revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regard less of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Town's net assets and changes in  them . You can th ink of the Town's net 
assets - the difference between assets and l iab i l it ies - as one way to measure the Town's financial health, 
or f inancial position. Over t ime, increases or decreases in  the Town's net assets are one i nd icator of 
whether its f inancial health is improving or deteriorat ing.  You wi l l  need to consider other non-financial 
factors, however, such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the condition of the Town's roads, 
to assess the overal l  health of the Town . 

I n  the Statement of Net Assets and the Statements of Activities, we d ivide the Town into three types: 

• Governmental activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, inc lud ing pol ice, 
f ire, publ ic works, parks departments and general adm inistration . Property taxes, franchise fees, 
and state and federal grants finance m ost of these activities. 

• Business-type activities - The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover al l  or m ost of the 
cost of certain services it provides. The Town's waste management, bu i ld ing and zon ing ,  golf 
course and beach faci l ities are reported here.  

• Component Unit - The component u nit is a legal ly separate organization for which the Town either 
f inancia l ly  accountable, or the nature and relationship with the Town is such that exclusion would 
cause the Town's f inancial statements to be m islead ing or incomplete . The Town includes one 
d iscretely presented component un it (Town of Southampton Housing Authority) as a separate 
col u m n  on the Town-wide statements. Complete f inancial statements of the component un its can 
be obtained from the i r  administrative office. (See Note 2) 

Reporting the Town's Most Significant Funds 

Fund financial statements present f inancial i nformation in  the trad itional governmental accounting format, 
with an emphasis on the most significant funds.  Our analysis of the Town's major funds begins on page 
1 7. Some funds are requ i red to be establ ished by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Town 
establ ishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particu lar purposes, or to show that 
it is meeting legal responsib i l it ies for us ing certain taxes, g rants, and other m oney (grants received from 
the U .S. Department of Housing and U rban Development) . The Town's three kinds of funds -
governmental , proprietary and f iduciary - use d ifferent accounting approaches. 

• Governmental Funds - Most of the Town's basic services are reported i n  governmental funds, 
which focus on how money f lows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that 
are avai lable for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method cal led modified 
accrual accounting, which measures cash and al l  other f inancial assets that can readi ly  be 
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detai led short-term view of the 
Town's genera l  government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund 
information helps determ ine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent 
in the near futu re to fi nance the Town's programs. We describe the re lationsh ip (or d ifferences) 
between governmental activit ies ( reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds in a reconci l iation fol lowing each of the governmental fund 
f inancial statements (pages 1 8  and 20).  
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• Proprietary Funds - When the Town charges customers for the services it provides - whether to 
outside customers or to other units of the Town - these services are general ly reported i n  
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in  the  same way that a l l  activities are reported i n  
the Statement of Net Assets and  the  Statement o f  Activities. The Town's enterprise funds (a 
component of proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type act ivities we report in the 
Town-wide statements but provide more detai l  and addit ional i nformation, such as cash f lows, for 
p roprietary funds. 

• Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources that are earmarked for the 
benefit of other parties, and are not reflected on the Town-wide f inancial statements because 
those funds are not avai lable to support the Town's activit ies. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE 

Financial H ighl ights: 

Net assets 

The Town's total assets on December 31 , 2008 were $803.0 m i l l ion ,  an i ncrease of $44.7 m i l l ion over the 
prior year. Total l iabi l it ies were $ 1 77.3 m i l l ion, an increase of approximately $32. 1 m i l l ion from the prior 
year. The result is a net asset balance of $625.7 m i l l ion, an increase of $1 2.6 m i l l ion over the prior year. 
Of the Town's net assets, $61 3.7 m i l l ion was invested in capital assets, net of related debt,  while $3.2 
m i l l ion was restricted . U nrestricted net assets were $8.8 m i l l ion on December 31 , 2008. 

• Negat ive working capital of $2. 1  m i l l ion due to the Comm unity Preservation Fund ("CPF") pu rchasing 
property with short-term borrowings which was converted to long-term borrowing i n  2009 as wel l  as a 
reduction of certain receivable balances due to t im ing of payments . 

• I nvestment i n  capital assets of $735 .6 m i l l ion (compared to $665.2 m i l l ion in 2007) increased primari ly 
due to $70 m i l l ion i n  CPF pu rchases and $1 6 m i l l ion in  ongoing capital projects offset by $1 7 m i l l ion in  
depreciation charges. 

• Net assets of $625.7 m i l l ion (compared to $6 1 4.6 m i l l ion in 2007) i ncreased primari ly due to capital 
asset pu rchases and bond payments. 

The Town's bonded indebtedness was $96.0 m i l l ion which is included in  l iabi l it ies. 

Change in  Net Assets 

The Town's program revenues for the year ended December 31 , 2008 were $53.3 m i l l ion,  a decrease of 
$1 8.7 m i l l ion f rom 2007 which is primari ly related to a decrease i n  C P F  revenue collected and decreased 
i nterest rates on id le monies offset by increases in real property taxes and local sou rces. General 
revenues d ecreased by $2.5 m i l l ion from last year to $69.7 m i l l ion .  Total combined revenues for 2008 
were $1 23.0 m i l l ion, a decrease of $2 1 .2 m i l l ion from 2007. Expenses for the year ended December 31 , 
2008 were $ 1 1 0 .5 m i l l ion an increase of $6.4 m i l l ion which is primari ly related to the in it ial recogn ition of a 
$9.0 m i l l ion other post-employment benefit obl igation ,  resu lt ing i n  a change i n  net assets for the year 
ended Decem ber 31 , 2008 i n  the amount of $1 2.5 mi l l ion. 

The Town's combined net assets increased from a year ago, rising from $61 4.6 m i l l ion to $625.7 mi l l ion. Our 
analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1 )  and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the Town's 
governmental and business-type activities. 
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Table 1 :  

Condensed Statement of Net Assets 
Governmental and Business-type Activities - Primary Government 
As of December 31 , 

Governmental Activities Business-tYQe Activities Totals 
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 

Assets 
Current and other assets $ 58,406,144 $ 87,985,571 $ 8,688,276 $ 5,127,777 $ 67,094,420 $ 93,113,348 
Non-current assets 712 957 566 643 921,216 22 944 846 21 257 384 735 902 412 665 178 600 

Total assets $ ll:1 3631:10 $ I3:1 906 Z8I $ 3:1 633 :122 $ 26385 :16:1 $ 802996832 $ I5829:1 948 
Liabilities 

Current liabilities $ 61,039,496 $ 32,182,231 $ 8,114,158 $ 811,418 $ 69,153,654 $ 32,993,649 
Long-term liabilities 100,843,462 103 079 159 7 276 828 7 600 627 108 120,290 110 679 786 

Total liabilities $ :16:1 882958 $ :13526:1 390 $ :15390986 $ 84:12045 $ :1ll2Z3944 $ :143 6Z3 435 
Net assets 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt $ 598,031,530 $ 548,126,307 $ 15,705,306 $ 14,908,073 $ 613,736,836 $ 563,034,380 

Restricted 2,000,000 42,881,535 1,217,763 3,217,763 42,881,535 
Unrestricted 9 449 222 5 637 555 (680 933) 3 065 043 8 768 289 8 702 598 

Total net assets $ 609480 I52 $ 59664539Z $ :16242 :136 $ :lZ 9I3 :1 :16 $ 625122888 $ 6:146:185:13 

Table 2:  

Condensed Statement o f  Activities and Changes i n  Net Assets 
Governmental and Business-type Activities - Primary Government 
As of December 31, 

Governmental Activities Business-tYQe Activities Totals 
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 

Program revenues: 
Charges for services $ 3,272,015 $ 4,014,004 $ 7,485,850 $ 8,294,555 $ 10,757,865 $ 12,308,559 
Operating grants and contributions 42,334,202 59,483,982 117,642 54,020 42,451,844 59,538,002 
Capital grants and contributions 61,851 150 164 61 851 150 164 

Total program revenues 45 668 068 63 648 150 7 603,492 8 348 575 53 271 560 71 996 725 

General revenues: 
Real property taxes 53,161,189 50,764,207 53,161,189 50,764,207 
Other real property tax items 446,647 440,318 446,647 440,318 
Non-property tax items 1,010,521 894,303 1,010,521 894,303 
Interest earnings 2,116,151 4,036,759 88,371 174,779 2,204,522 4,211,538 
Local government assistance - County 1,501,061 1,501,061 
State aid - unrestricted 11,108,990 12,276,742 11,108,990 12,276,742 
Other 1 807 480 2 117 575 1 807 480 2 117 575 

Total general revenues 69 650,978 72 030 965 88 371 174,779 69 739 349 72 205 744 

Total revenues 115 319 046 135 679 115 7 691 863 8 523 354 123 010 909 144 202 469 

Program expenses: 
General government support 22,212,560 21,613,601 22,212,560 21,613,601 
Public safety 27,954,384 26,068,407 27,954,384 26,068,407 
Health 2,112,910 1,884,709 2,112,910 1,884,709 
Transportation 22,949,170 20,775,342 22,949,170 20,775,342 
Economic assistance and opportunity 2,699,959 2,138,101 2,699,959 2,138,101 
Culture and recreation 7,850,068 6,704,058 7,850,068 6,704,058 
Home and community services 12,843,426 13,468,932 12,843,426 13,468,932 
Interest on debt 3,641,720 3,555,930 293,167 3,934,887 3,555,930 
Beaches and marinas 1,515,342 1,546,966 1,515,342 1,546,966 
Waste management 2,093,351 2,342,016 2,093,351 2,342,016 
Building and zoning 3,587,303 3,328,637 3,587,303 3,328,637 
Golf course 702 164 647 353 702 164 647 353 

Total expenses 102 264,197 96 209 080 8 191 327 7 864 972 110 455 524 104 074 052 

Excess (deficiency) 
before interfund transfers 13,054,849 39,470,035 (499,464) 658,382 12,555,385 40,128,417 

Interfund transfers 1 213 366 701 446 (1 213 366) (701,446) 

Change in net assets $ :14 268 2:15 $ 40:ll:1 48:1 $ (:11:12830) $ (43064) $ :12555385 $ 40 :128 4:ll 
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Governmental Activities 

Revenues for the Town's governmental activities decreased by 1 5.0 percent ($20.4 m i l l ion) whi le total expenses 
increased by 6.3 percent ($6 . 1  mi l l ion) . The m ajority of the decrease in revenue is due to a $1 7. 1  m i l l ion decrease 
in operating grants and contributions. 

The cost of al l governmental activities this year was $1 02.3 m i l l ion. However, as shown in the Statement of 
Activities on page 1 6, the amount that taxpayers u lt imately financed for these activities through Town taxes was 
only $53.2 m i l l ion, because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($3.3 
mi l l ion) or by other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions 
($42.3 m i l l ion) . 

Table 3 presents the cost of the Town's governmental activities as wel l  as the net cost of services (total cost less 
revenues generated by the activities) . The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the Town's 
taxpayers by each of these functions. 

Table 3: 

Net Costs of Services 
Governmental Activities 
For the years ended December 31 , 

General government support 
Public Safety 
Health 
Transportation 
Economic assistance and opportunity 
Culture and recreation 
Home and community services 
Interest on debt 

$ 

$ 

Total Cost 
of Services 

2008 2007 

22,212,560 $ 21,613,601 $ 
27,954,384 26,068,407 

2,112,910 1,884,709 
22,949,170 20,775,342 

2,699,959 2,138,101 
7,850,068 6,704,058 

12,843,426 13,468,932 
3 641 720 3 555 930 

:102264 :19Z $ 96209080 $ 

Program Net (Cost) 
Revenues of Services 

2008 2007 2008 2007 

37,172,471 $ 55,307,450 $ 14,959,911 $ 33,693,849 
407,618 491,299 (27,546,766) (25,577,108) 

(2,112,910) (1,884,709) 
765,068 647,442 (22,184,102) (20,127,900) 

1,314,354 318,756 (1,385,605) (1,819,345) 
479,131 616,820 (7,370,937) (6,087,238) 

5,529,426 6,266,383 (7,314,000) (7,202,549) 
(3 641 720) (3 555 930) 

45668068 $ 63648 :150 $ (56 596 :129) $ (32560930) 

The overall net cost of services increased over 2007 by $6. 1 m il l ion. The majority of the increase in cost of 
services was due to the recognition of approximately $9.0 m i l l ion of other post-employment benefit obl igations. 

Table 4: Sources of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2008 - Governmental Activities 

State aid 
Interest earnings 

Other tax items 
1 %  

-------r--­
Real p roperty 

taxes 
46% 

2% 
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Miscel laneo us 
1 % Charges f o r  

Operating g rants 
and contributions 

37% 

Cap ital g rants and 
contri but ions 

0% 



Table 5: Expenses for Fiscal Year 2008 - Governmental Activities 

Home and 
com m u nity se rvices 

1 3% 

Culture an d 

recreat ion 
8% 

Econ om ic ass istance 
an d oppo rtu nity 

3% 

Tran sp ortat ion 
22 % 

Busi ness-Type Activities 

Inter est on de bt 
4% 

Health 
2% 

Gen eral gover nment 
supp ort 

22% 

Pu blic safety 
2 6% 

The Town's total operating revenues from business-type activities decreased by 9.8 percent ($0.8 m i l l ion) over 
2007. Some significant year-end financial data relating to these entities are highl ighted as follows: 

• Operating revenue in the Beaches and Marinas Fund totaled $1 .4 m i l l ion in 2008. I ncrease in operating 
revenue from the previous year is attributable to i ncreased beach parking fees at the beaches and 
gasol ine sales at the marinas. The fund overall had a decrease in net assets of approximately $0.7 
m i l l ion due to increased salary and depreciation expense. 

• Operating revenue in the Waste Management Fund totaled $2. 1  m i l l ion in 2008. Charges for waste 
management services provided to certain governmental funds were the main cause of increased 
revenues. The fund overal l  had a decrease in net assets of approximately $0.8 mi l l ion. The operating 
revenues for the current year were not sufficient to cover operating expenditures. However, the Town wi l l  
be raising disposal fees and a review and update of  the Town's Sol id Waste Management Plan is  
proposed for  the upcoming year. 

• Operating revenue in the Bui lding and Zoning Fund totaled $3.3 mi l l ion in 2008. I ncrease in operating 
revenue from the previous year is attributable to increased bui ld ing permit fees. The fund overall had a 
decrease in net assets of approximately $0.2 m i l l ion. 

• The Golf Course continues to be in range with continued growth i n  revenue to cover increased operation 
expenses. The increase in the net asset contributions, are to bu i ld up total net assets and cash for future 
capital improvement reserves. This wi l l  insure sufficient cash flow to meet annual operations and capital 
debt service from operations even during a poor season that can result from simply bad weather 
conditions. 
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Table 6: Sources of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2008 - Business-Type Activities 

O perating grants 
and contr ibutions 

20/0 

Interest earnings 
1 % 

services 
97% 

Table 7: Expenses for Fiscal Year 2008 - Business-Type Activities 

G olf cou rse 

�­ "---'''-"oY-o_-o-r_o-..ro 

Bui ld ing and zoning 
44% 

Interest on  debt 

--... ----, ........ 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TH E TOWN'S FUNDS 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund assets decreased by 9.5 percent and l iabi l ities increased by 90.6 percent primarily related to an 
increase in current year short-term borrowings and an increase in  deferred revenue relating to the col lection of 
2009 real property taxes. Fund balance declined by 26.9 percent which is reflected in  a lower undesignated fund 
balance of $2.6 m i l l ion. 

I n  the General Fund, the overal l  fund balance decreased approximately $3.9 mi l l ion. The decrease was mainly 
attributable to the $4.0 m il l ion decrease in state aid revenue, increase in employee benefit expenses, legal fees 
and transfers out to the Capital Projects Fund. 

The Pol ice Fund operated in  an excess of approximately $1 .3 mi l l ion in  2008. The 5.7% increase in  revenue was 
partial ly offset by an increase in salaries and employee benefits expenses. This increase is greater than 
anticipated, and the combination of lower costs and larger tax increases has been implemented and wi l l continue 
unti l the deficit fund balance is erased. 

The Capital Projects Fund assets decreased by 36%. Total l iabil ities were level .  

The Capital Projects Fund had a decrease in fund balance of $6.3 m i l l ion. This is due to the tim ing of when 
revenues are recorded from the issuance of long-term debt, and when the expenditures for the related projects are 
incurred.  The deficit fund balance wi l l  be el im inated once the Town converts short-term borrowings to long-term . 

I n  the Community Preservation and Park Districts, the fund balance decreased approximately $44.8 m i l l ion. 
Overall revenues decreased by $21 .0 mi l l ion from 2007, with the majority of the decrease pertaining to decreased 
Comm unity Preservation revenue which is generated by certain sales of real estate in the Town. Although 
revenues decreased, the overall decrease in  fund balance was due to purchases of $70.0 m i l l ion in  open space 
land with Comm unity Preservation Funds financed with short-term bond anticipation notes. As of December 31 , 
2008 the Comm unity Preservation and Park Districts had an overall fund deficit that was el iminated in January 
2009 when the Town issued permanent financing for these land acquisitions. 

The Debt Service Fund has a total deficit fund balance of $0. 1  mi l l ion due to the t iming of reimbursement by the 
Enterprise Funds for debt payments. The Town plans to d iscontinue use of this Fund in the upcoming year. 

The Fire Protection Districts Funds have a total deficit fund balance of $0.2 m il l ion as a resu lt from unanticipated 
increases in electric costs. The Town anticipates el im inating this deficit through increases in subsequent year 
budget appropriations, which wi l l  result in increased tax assessment for the Fi re Protection Districts. 

The Water Districts Funds have a total deficit fund balance of $0.2 mi l l ion as a resu lt from unanticipated increases 
in uti l ity costs. The Town anticipates on el im inating this deficit through increases in subsequent year budget 
appropriations, which wi l l  resu lt in increased tax assessment for the Water Districts. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Variances for the General Fund 

The Town's General Fund Balance is a healthy $1 0.6 m il l ion. However, there is more work to be done to address 
structural deficits in various operating funds. Substantial deficits in the Police Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Fire 
Protection Districts, Water Districts and Waste Management Enterprise Fund currently exist and the Town is now 
taking steps to reduce rel iance on the General Fund surplus to offset their  operating deficits. 

Addressing the manner in which tax rates were reduced by appl ication of General Fund surplus is a top priority in 
the upcoming budget process. Ensuring that budgeted appropriations in the Town's adopted operating budget are 
not exceeded is also an objective. 

With tough economic t imes being faced by many people, a more cost efficient budget wil l  be proposed for 2009, 
with potential re-organization measures to streamline operations. In addition , the Town wil l  embark on m ulti-year 
budget projections for its operating budgets as wel l  as develop more f inancially prudent procedures for the 
development and implementation of its five year capital budget program . 
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The General Fund's f inal revenue budget amounts d id not sign ificantly change from the Board's original 
anticipated budget. Overall revenues were under final budget amounts by $0.5 mi l l ion. This deficiency is the 
result of lower than budgeted interest earnings. 

The General Fund's final expenditu res and other f inancing uses budget increased $5.9 m il l ion from the Board's 
orig inal anticipated budget. The majority of this increase from the original budget was due to increases in general 
government support and transfers out to other funds. Overall transfers out were increased approximately $5. 1  
mi l l ion d u e  to increased authorizations for capital projects t o  b e  funded through General Fund appropriations. 
Overal l ,  the final budget for expenditures and other financing uses were under the actual expenditures and 
encumbrances by $3.3 mi l l ion. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADM INISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2008, the Town had $735.9 m il l ion invested in a broad range of capital assets, includ ing beaches, 
land, pol ice equipment, bui ld ings, park faci l ities, roads, bridges and water infrastructure (See Table 1 0) .  Since the 
inception of the Comm unity Preservation Fund in 1 999, the Town of Southampton has acquired preserved land 
valued at approximately $370.0 m i l l ion of the Town's total $458.0 mi l l ion of land. The details of capital assets are 
shown in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

Table 9: I nvestment in Capital Assets for Fiscal Year 2008 

Machinery and 
equipme nt 

1% 

Infrastructu re 
2 8% 

Improvements other 
than bu i ldings 

2% 

Land 
64% 

The Town implemented a ten year Capital Plan in 2005, which projects the long range planning of capital projects, 
along with the source of f inancing for those projects. I n  2009, the Town has revised the Capital Plan to five years. 

During the 2009 f iscal year, the Town conducted an internal evaluation of ongoing capital projects with in  its 
Capital Projects Fund. As a resu lt of the i r  i nternal evaluat ion, the Town Board voted to contract a forensic 
accounti ng f i rm to conduct a forensic investigation of a l l  capital projects from 2003 to 2007 occurring with in the 
Capital Projects Fund. This evaluation is sti l l  ongoing and the resu lts of it wi l l  be considered in  the 2009 fiscal 
year. 
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Table 1 0: 
Capital Assets 
As of December 31 , 

Governmental Activities: 
Land 
Bui ld ings 
Improvements other than bui ld ings 
Machinery and equ ipment 
I nfrastructu re 

Bridges 
Landfi l l  
Roads, curbs and sidewalks 
Lighting system 
Bulkheads, piers and boardwalks 
Water and sewer mains 

Total capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

2008 
$ 457,985,484 

37,752,207 
1 3,757,51 0  
22,547, 1 89 

970, 1 1 0 
9,4 1 2,51 5 

335,736,834 
1 ,349,791 
9,053,731 
8,71 2,1 69 

897,277,540 
1 84,587,425 

71 2 690 1 1 5 Total net capital assets �$=����� 

Business-type Activities: 
Land $ 
Bui ld ings 
Improvements other than bui ld ings 
Machinery and equ ipment 

Total capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

2008 
1 1 ,0 1 2 ,803 

4,980,379 
7,233, 1 32 
215371532 

25,763,846 
218 1 91000 

22.944.846 Total net capital assets �$==���� 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2007 
388,01 8,709 

29,569,426 
1 1 ,231 ,093 
20,552,477 

953,673 
9,352,543 

333,570,803 
1 ,349,791  
8,998,343 
7,926,842 

81 1 ,523,700 
1 671602A84 

643,921 2 1 6 

2007 
1 1 ,01 2,803 

4,979, 1 86 
5,033,436 
2,4951678 

23,521 , 1 03 
21263171 9 

2 1 ,257,384 

The Town's fiscal year 2009 capital budget includes the continuation of funding for a community and aquatic 
center, pool, and road reconstruction, also with about a dozen new smaller projects such as software upgrades, 
historic preservation, park upgrades, Town Hall repairs and various heavy equ ipment purchases. 

Debt Adm in istration 

During 2005, the Town of Southampton adopted a debt management policy, which l im its the Town's debt service 
funded by taxpayers to not more than 1 5% of operating expenditures. For 2008, the Town's total debt service was 
approximately $1 4.0 m il l ion , of which $8.2 m i l l ion was paid by the 2% CPF transfer tax and highway road 
assessments, resu lting in taxpayer supported debt service of just over $5.8 mi l l ion. The Town uti l izes a Debt 
Service Fund, which receives operating transfers from governmental funds and separately accounts for Town­
wide debt payments. 

The Town of Southampton currently has total outstanding bonded indebtedness was $96.0 mi l l ion at year-end 
2008. No new debt was issued in 2008. 

The Town recognized a $9.0 mi l l ion obligation for other post-employment benefits in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 45. 

Note 9 to the f inancial statements shows the detai ls of the Town's long-term l iabi l ities. 
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U nion Contracts 

The Town of Southam pton has approximately 550 fu l l-t ime, year-round employees, which including part-time and 
summer seasonal employees can increase to over 1 , 1 00. The Pol ice Benevolent Association (the "PBA") 
represents 1 02 employees under contract, which expired on December 31 , 2008. The Civil Service Employee 
Association (the "CSEA") represents approximately 31 0 employees under contract which expired on December 
31 , 2008. The remaining are adm inistrative or non-un ion employees. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AN D NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AN D RATES 

Budget Procedures 

The Town's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-year 2008 budget, tax 
rates and fees to be charged for the business-type activities. I n  2003, the Town Board mandated a 5% cap on 
any increases in the Town tax rate in any given year. The Tax Stabilization Reserve was adopted by the Town 
Board mandating that 1 0% of the annual budget be reserved from fund balance to be used to reduce the tax rate. 
The Town Board voted to appropriate $2 .3 mi l l ion of unreserved surplus to balance the 2009 budget. Although 
the mortgage tax revenues collected continue to exceed expectations, the Town of Southampton has continued to 
budget its revenues conservatively. 

Tax Collection 

Property taxes for the Town, together with the County, fi re and school district taxes are collected by the Town Tax 
Receiver on a single tax bi l l .  The taxes are due and payable in two equal payments on December 1 and May 1 0 , 
but may be paid without penalty by January 1 0  and May 31 , respectively. Penalties on unpaid taxes are 1 % per 
month from the day such taxes are due and payable and 1 0% after May 31 . 

As of Total Tax To Town To County Uncollected 
May 31 ,  Levy SUQervisor Treasurer Retu rned 

2008 $ 263,554,592 $ 248,575,71 9 $ 1 4,978,873 $ 1 1 ,749,256 
2007 247,855,948 234,400,547 1 3,455,401 1 0,285,056 
2006 236,598, 1 66 225,544,264 1 1 ,053,092 9,471 ,21 2 
2005 222,742,020 21 1 ,398, 1 47 1 1 ,343,873 8,767,202 
2004 203,640,297 1 92,769,021 1 0,871 ,276 1 0, 1 1 3,736 
2003 1 90,384,764 1 80,574,224 9,81 0,540 1 ,475, 1 67 

The Town Receiver d istributes the collected money to the Town, f ire and school d istricts prior to distributing the 
balance col lected to the County. U ncol lected amounts are not segregated by the Receiver and any deficiency in 
tax collection is the County's l iabi l ity. The Town is thereby assured of fu l l  tax collection. 

Business-TYQe Activities 

As for the Town's business-type activities, it is expected that the 2009 results wi l l  improve based on these recent 
rate decisions: 

• The Beach and Marinas Enterprise Fund d id not do as wel l  as expected in 2008, however, rate changes 
wi l l  be considered to include the amortization of the bonds issued to m ake the capital improvements in 
addition to offsetting the costs of operations. 

• The Bui ld ing and Zoning Enterprise Fund expects to report a profit from operations in 2009, although, it 
experienced a decl ine in revenues resulting from the softening of the real estate market. After adding new 
fees for engineering services, along with the substantial reserves carried forward from the prior year's 
profits, the Town feels confident that it wi l l  be able to continue supporting the level of services expected by 
our residents. 
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• The Poxabogue Golf Course continues to experience consistent profitability from operations since its 
inception. The Town of Southampton and The Town of East Hampton have agreed to a capital 
improvement plan that wi l l  enable them to expand services. The capital improvements schedu led to be 
phased in over several years wi l l  be financed through bonds paid off with the profits realized from 
operations. 

CONTACTING TH E TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEM ENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountabil ity for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Town Comptroller's Office at 
Town of Southampton, 1 1 6 Hampton Road, Southampton, NY 1 1 968 (631 ) 283-6000. 
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

DECEMBER 31,2008 

Prima!1 Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,681,582 $ 3,712,267 
Cash - restricted 8,380,612 
Accounts receivable, net 1,023,823 21,233 
State and federal aid receivables 6,698,417 
Internal balances 6,207,435 40,245 
Due from fiduciary funds 4,224,028 4,710,323 
Due from other governments 1,651,012 
Prepaid charges 2,518,610 184,151 
Inventory of material and supplies 20,057 
Other assets 20,625 

Total current assets 58,406,144 8,688,276 

Non-current assets: 
Deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization 267,451 
Non-depreciable capital assets 457,985,484 11,012,803 
Depreciable capital assets, net of depreciation 254,704,631 11,932,043 

Total non-current assets 712,957,566 22,944,846 

Total assets $ 771 363 710 � 31 633 122 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 4,141,271 $ 167,880 
Accrued liabilities 765,367 
Accrued interest payable 1,033,729 61,561 
Bond anticipation notes payable 25,865,000 
Internal balances 40,245 6,207,435 
Due to fiduciary funds 6,144,099 1,138,673 
Due to other governments 17,983 
Deferred revenue 12,030,301 19,849 
Non-current liabilities due within one year -

General obligation bonds payable 10,065,749 518,760 
Special assessment bonds 

with governmental commitment 82,500 
Due to Employees' Retirement System 24,530 
Compensated absences 500,000 
Claims and judgments payable 150,000 
Estimated liability for landfill closure 

and postclosure care costs 178,722 
Mortgage payable 

Total current liabilities 61,039,496 8,114,158 

Non-current liabilities: 
General obligation bonds payable 78,330,436 6,720,780 
Special assessment bonds 

with governmental commitment 314,900 
Due to Employees' Retirement System 5,486 
Compensated absences 9,162,723 556,048 
Claims and judgments payable 413,852 
Other post-employment benefits 9,041,618 
Estimated liability for landfill closure 

and postclosure care costs 3,574,447 
Mortgage payable 

Total non-current liabilities 100,843,462 7,276,828 

Total liabilities 161,882,958 15,390,986 

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 598,031,530 15,705,306 
Restricted: 

Home and community services 2,000,000 
Tax stabilization 1,217,763 

Unrestricted 9,449,222 (680,933) 
Total net assets 609,480,752 16,242,136 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 771,363,710 $ 31,633,122 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 
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Component 
Total Unit 

$ 31,393,849 $ 80,461 
8,380,612 139,062 
1,045,056 28,405 
6,698,417 
6,247,680 
8,934,351 
1,651,012 
2,702,761 4,867 

20,057 
20,625 

67,094,420 252,795 

267,451 28,682 
468,998,287 620,500 
266,636,674 2,513,359 

735,902,412 3,162,541 

� 802 996 832 � 3 415 336 

$ 4,309,151 $ 19,210 
765,367 4,764 

1,095,290 2,301 
25,865,000 

6,247,680 
7,282,772 

17,983 
12,050,150 14,315 

10,584,509 

82,500 
24,530 

500,000 
150,000 

178,722 
33,436 

69,153,654 74,026 

85,051,216 

314,900 
5,486 

9,718,771 
413,852 

9,041,618 

3,574,447 
3,000,745 

108,120,290 3,000,745 

177,273,944 3,074,771 

613,736,836 

2,000,000 340,565 
1,217,763 
8,768,289 

625,722,888 340,565 

$ 802,996,832 $ 3,415,336 



FU NCTIONS AND PROGRAMS: 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Government activities: 

General government support 

Public safety 
Health 

Transportation 

Economic assistance and opportunity 

Culture and recreation 

Home and community services 

Interest on debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Beaches and marinas 

Waste management 

Building and zoning 

Golf course 

Interest on debt 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

COMPONENT UNIT 
Home and community services 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AN D CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Program Revenues 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

EXEenses Services Contributions Contributions 

$ 22,21 2,560 $ 1 ,047,045 $ 36,1 25,426 $ 
27,954,384 327,202 80,4 16  

2 , 1 1 2,9 10  
22,949 , 1 70 703,21 7  61 ,851 
2,699,959 1 ,31 4,354 
7,850,068 98, 1 60 380,971 

1 2,843,426 1 ,799,608 3,729,81 8 
3,641 ,720 

1 02,264,1 97 3,272&!..§... 42,334,202 61 ,851 

1 ,51 5,342 1 ,363,697 
2,093,351 1 ,965, 1 97 1 1 5,9 1 7  
3,587,303 3,348,958 646 

702 , 164 807,998 1 ,079 
293 , 167 

8,1 91,327 7,485,850 1 1 7,642 

$ 1 1 0.455.524 $ 10.757.865 $ 42.451.844 $ 61.851 

$ 51 3 708 $ 150 057 $ 330 260 =$:!:::::===== 

General revenues -

Real property taxes 

Other real property tax items 

Non-property tax items 

Interest earnings 

State aid - unrestricted 

Other 

Transfers 

Total general revenues 

Change in  net assets 

Total net assets, beginning of year, 
as restated 

Total net assets, end of year 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 
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Net (ExEense) Revenue and Change in Net Assets 

Primar� Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ 1 4,959,91 1 $ $ 1 4,959,91 1 $ 
(27,546,766) (27,546,766) 

(2, 1 1 2,91 0) (2, 1 1 2,91 0) 
(22, 1 84 , 1 02) (22, 1 84,1 02) 

(1 ,385,605) (1 ,385,605) 
(7,370,937) (7,370,937) 
(7,31 4,000) (7,31 4,000) 
(3,641 ,720) (3,641 ,720) 

(56,596,1 29) (56,596,1 29) 

(1 51 ,645) ( 15 1 ,645) 
( 12 ,237) ( 12 ,237) 

(237,699) (237,699) 
1 06,9 1 3  1 06,91 3 

(293,1 67) (293, 1 67) 

(587,835) (587,835) 

(56,596,129) (587,835) (57,1 83,964) 

53, 1 6 1 , 1 89 53, 1 61 , 1 89 
446,647 446,647 

1 ,01 0,521 1 ,01 0,521 
2 , 1 1 6, 1 5 1  88,371 2,204,522 

1 1 , 1 08,990 1 1 , 1 08,990 
1 ,807,480 1 ,807,480 
1 ,21 3,366 (1 ,21 3,366) 

70,864,344 (1 , 1 24,995) 69,739,349 

1 4,268,21 5  (1 ,71 2,830) 1 2,555,385 

595,21 2,537 1 7,954,966 6 13,1 67,503 

$ 609.480.752 $ 16.242.136 $ 625.722.888 $ 

Component 
Unit 

(33,391) 

3,386 

291 ,762 

295 , 148 

261 ,757 

78,808 

340.565 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash - restricted 

Accounts receivable. net 
State and federal aid receivables 
Due from enterprise funds 
Due from fiduciary funds 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 

Prepaid charges 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Bond anticipation notes payable 
Due to enterprise funds 
Due to fiduciary funds 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

FUND EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
Fund balance - reserved: 

Encumbrances 
Tax stabilization 
Community preservation 

Fund balance (deficit) - unreserved: 
Designated for -

Subsequent year's budget 
Affordable housing 

Undesignated 

Total fund equity (deficit) 

Total liabilities and fund equity (deficit) 

General 

8,795,705 $ 

504.940 
4.038.847 
3,000,000 

2,1 99,698 
3,065 

600.1 65 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31 2008 

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Police Capital Community Preservation 
District Projects and Park Districts 

31 0,764 8,935,988 $ 1 28,983 
8,365,009 

1 49.534 800 
1 ,684,997 202. 1 59 

3,207,435 
3,884,465 1 94,1 60 

330,549 277,843 
1 ,647,947 

672,398 1 ,580 1 2. 1 97 

$ 

Debt 
Service 

( 1 7 1 , 1 1 1 )  

977,401 

20,625 

Non-major 
Governmental 

Funds 

9,681 ,253 
1 5,603 

368.549 
772,41 4  

1 45,403 
1 ,200,329 

262,735 

Totals 

27,681 ,582 
8,380,61 2  
1 .023,823 
6,698 ,4 1 7  
6,207,435 
4,224,028 
4,985,820 
1 ,651 ,01 2  
1 ,549,075 

20,625 

$ 19 142420 $ 6702158 $ 12677711 10626939 826915 $ 12446286 $ 62 422429 

$ 9 1 4.883 $ 
1 8.829 

40.245 
2,071 ,808 

1 49.207 
1 7 ,097 

5.355.1 1 7  

8.567 1 86 

1 1 9,520 
3,476,964 

2,341 ,936 
2,000,000 
2 636,8 1 4  

1 0 575 234 

19.142.420 

2 1 7 , 1 80 $ 2.31 8.050 
44.995 594.941 

1 0,865,000 

2,400,287 
4,494,206 

4,672,477 3,963 

9 428 858 1 6 1 82 241 

(2 726 700) (3 504 530) 

(2 726 700) (3 504 530) 

6.702.158 12.677.711 $ 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 
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39,926 
75 

1 5,000,000 

1 05,989 

1 5,1 45 990 

1 76,2 1 2  

(4,695,263) 

(4 5 1 9 051) 

10.626.939 

3,702 $ 647,530 $ 4,1 41 ,271 
1 06,527 765,367 

25,865,000 
40.245 

880,604 791 ,400 6 , 1 44,099 
342,407 4,985,820 

886 1 7.983 
1 6,445 4,1 61,9 1 7  1 4,31 5,908 

900 751 6.050,667 56 275 693 

1 1 8,439 4 1 4, 1 7 1  
883,777 4,360,741 

(4.695,263) 

746,207 3,088, 1 43 
2,000,000 

(73 836) 4 647 1 96 978 944 

(73 836) 6 395 6 1 9  6 1 46 736 

$ 826.915 12.446.286 $ 62.422.429 



TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEM ENT OF NET ASSETS 

DECEMBER 31,  2008 

Total Fund Equity - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets 
are different because: 

Capital assets less accumulated depreciation are included in the 
Statement of Net Assets: 

Capital assets - non-depreciable 
Capital assets - depreciable 

Accumulated depreciation 

Long-term l iabi l ities applicable to the Town's governmental activities 
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are 
not reported in the funds. However these l iabilities are included in the 
Statement of Net Assets: 

General obligation bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 
Special assessment bonds with governmental commitment 
Due to Employees' Retirement System 
Compensated absences 
Claims and judgments payable 
Other post-employment benefits 
Estimated liability for landfil l closure 
and postclosure care costs 

Prepaid items included in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Deferred charges included in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Interest and accounts payable applicable to the Town's governmental activities are not due 
and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported in the 
funds. However these liabil ities are included in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Net Assets - Governmental Activities 

$ 457,985,484 
439,292,056 

(1 84,587,425) 

(88,396, 1 85) 
(397,400) 

(30,01 6) 
(9,662,723) 

(563,852) 
(9,041 ,61 8) 

(3,753, 1 69) 

The accompanying notes to fi nancial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 
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$ 6 , 1 46,736 

71 2 ,690, 1 1 5  

( 1 1 1 ,844,963) 

969,535 

267,451 

2 ,285,607 

(1 ,033,729) 

$ 609.480.752 



REVENUES 
Real property taxes 
Other real property tax items 
Non-property tax items 

Special assessments 
Departmental income 
Intergovernmental charges 
Use of money and property 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and forfeitures 
Sale of property and compensation for loss 
Miscellaneous local sources 
State aid 
Federal aid 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government support 
Public safety 
Health 
Transportation 
Economic assistance and opportunity 
Culture and recreation 

Home and community services 
Employee benefits 
Capital outlay 
Debt service -

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Interfund transfers in 
Interfund transfers out 
Debt proceeds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Changes in  fund equity (deficit) 

Fund equity (deficit), beginning of year, as restated 

Fund equity (deficit), end of year 

General 

$ 1 9, 1 83,481 $ 
274,837 

1 ,01 0,521 

241 , 1 48 
1 2, 1 29 

533,927 
1 09,541 

1 ,668,459 
28,875 

380,971 
9,021 , 1 96 

440,071 

32,905,1 56 

1 3,940,51 9  
2,601 ,21 9 

26,749 
494, 1 83 

1 ,834,21 9  
4,321 ,927 
1 ,354,634 
5,7 1 1 ,665 

30,285,1 1 5  

2,620,041 

1 ,553,209 
(8,070,538) 

(6,51 7,329) 

(3,897,288) 

1 4,472,522 

$ 10.575.234 $ 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITU RES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY {DEFICIT} - GOVER N MENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Police Capital Community Preservation 
District Projects and Park Districts 

1 8,21 5,226 $ $ 333,000 
68,952 791 

235,01 6 

1 0 1 ,760 284,71 6 71 9,057 

500 
34,393 2,1 76,666 33,948,760 

1 ,647,723 61 ,851 
46,023 

20,349,593 2,523,233 35,001,608 

72,324,295 
1 3,584,41 1 

331 ,2 1 5  

5,31 9,097 1 1 9,930 
1 6,079,789 

44,200 
35,41 2 

1 8,903,508 1 6,079,789 72,855,052 

1 ,446,085 (1 3,556,556) (37,853,444 ) 

5 , 1 35 4,726,654 1 ,229,634 
(1 03,043) (1 85,400) (8, 1 92,440) 

2,721,000 

(97,908) 7,262,254 (6,962,806) 

1 ,348 , 1 77 (6,294,302) (44,81 6 ,250) 

(4,074,877) 2,789,772 40,297,1 99 

(2.726,700) $ (3.504.530) $ (4,519.051) 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 

- 1 9-

Non-major 
Debt Governmental 

Service Funds Totals 

$ $ 1 5,429,482 $ 53, 1 6 1 , 1 89 
88 1 01 ,979 446,647 

1 ,01 0,521 
8,039 8,039 

2 , 1 40,780 2,61 6,944 
634,903 647,032 

1 3,253 463,438 2,1 1 6, 1 51 
1 09,541 

1 ,668,459 
1 05 29,480 

1 ,340,937 37,881 ,727 
676,634 1 1 ,407,404 

3,729,81 8  4,2 15,91 2  

21,380 24,51 8,076 1 1 5,31 9,046 

31 ,585 86,296,399 
2,523,452 1 8,709,082 
2,083,951 2 , 1 1 0,700 
6,1 87,065 6,681 ,248 

2,400 1 ,836,61 9  
578,265 5,231 ,407 

7,490,432 8,845,066 
2,420,071 1 3,570,763 

1 6,079,789 

9,836,940 1 1 0,800 9,991 ,940 
3,594,91 4  49,079 3,679,405 

1 3,431 ,854 21,477,1 00 1 73,032,41 8 

(1 3,41 0,474) 3,040,976 (57,71 3,372) 

1 4,803,269 673,648 22,991 ,549 
(582,1 43) (4,644,61 9) (21 ,778,1 83) 

(2,721 ,000) 

1 1,500,1 26 (3,970,971) 1,21 3,366 

(1 ,91 0,348) (929,995) (56,500,006) 

1,836,51 2  7,325,6 1 4  62,646,742 

$ 173.836) $ 6.395.619 $ 6.146.736 



TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY (DEFICIT) TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITI ES 
D ECEM BER 31,  2008 

Changes in fund equity (deficit) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in 
the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The amount 
by which capital outlay exceeds depreciation in the current period is: 

Capital outlay $ 
Depreciation expense 

Other assets not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, 
are deferred in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources 
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of 
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net assets. 

Repayment of bond principal 
Repayment of special assessment bonds 
Due to Employees' Retirement System 
Compensated absences 
Claims and judgments payable 
Other post-employment benefits 
Estimated l iabi l ity for landfi l l closure 
and postclosure care costs 

Accrued interest costs 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an 
integral part of th is statement. 
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$ 

85,753,840 
{1 6 ,984,941 } 

9,968,300 
69,200 
47, 67 1  

468, 1 48 
1 50,086 

(9,041 ,61 8) 

435,501 
{24,886} 

� 

(56,500,006) 

68,768,899 

1 7,01 1 

2 ,072,402 

{90,091 } 

1 4,268,21 5  



ASSETS 
Current assets : 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net 
Due from fiduciary funds 
Due from governmental funds 
Prepaid expenses 
I nventory of materials and suppl ies 

Total current assets 

Non-current assets: 
Non-depreciable capital assets 
Depreciable capital assets, net of depreciation 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITI ES 
Current l iabil ities : 

Accounts payable and accrued l iabi l it ies 
Accrued interest payable 
Due to fiduciary funds 
Due to governmental funds 
Deferred revenues 
Non-current l iabil it ies due within  one year -

General obl igation bonds payable 

Total current l iabil ities 

Non-current l iabi l it ies: 
General obligation bonds payable 
Compensated absences 

Total non-current l iabi l ities 

Total l iabi l ities 

N ET ASSETS 
I nvestment in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for tax stabilization 
U n restricted 

Total net assets 

Total l iabil ities and net assets 

TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
STATEMENT OF N ET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,  2008 

M AJOR BUSIN ESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Beaches and Waste Bui ld ing and 
Marinas Management Zoning 

$ (245 , 1 64) $ (274,605) $ 3,651 ,080 
287 20,946 

4 ,699,704 
40,245 

1 9 ,029 29,61 1 1 35,5 1 1 
20 ,057 

4,473,569 (224,650) 3,847,782 

8,892,403 2 , 1 20 ,400 
6,640,575 4,602,374 1 81 ,1 1 3  

1 5z532z978 6z7221774 1 81 11 1 3  

$ 20.006.547 $ 6.498.1 24 $ 4.028.895 

$ 5,578 $ 93,078 $ 59,496 
37,324 24,237 

1 , 1 23,640 1 5 ,033 
4 , 1 00,582 1 ,960,624 

1 9 ,849 

379, 1 60 1 39,600 

4 ,522,644 3,341 , 1 79 94,378 

4,606,380 2 , 1 1 4,400 
20,824 1 75,059 360, 1 65 

416271204 212891459 36011 65 

9z1 491848 5163°1638 4541543 

1 0,547,438 4,468,774 1 81 , 1 1 3 
1 ,2 1 7,763 

309,261 {3,601 ,288} 2 , 1 75,476 

1 018561699 8671486 315741352 

$ 20 006 547 $ 6 498.1 24 $ 4.028.895 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 
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NON-MAJOR 
BUSIN ESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES 

Golf Total 
Course -Proprietary Funds 

$ 580,956 $ 3,71 2 ,267 
2 1 ,233 

1 0 ,61 9 4,71 0,323 
40,245 

1 84, 1 5 1 
20,057 

591 ,575 8,688,276 

1 1 ,01 2 ,803 
507,981 1 1z932,043 

5071981 221944z846 

$ 1 .099.556 $ 31.633.1 22 

$ 9,728 $ 1 67 ,880 
61 ,561 

1 , 1 38,673 
1 46,229 6,207 ,435 

1 9 ,849 

5 1 8,760 

1 55,957 8 , 1 1 4 , 1 58 

6,720,780 
556,048 

712761828 

1 55z957 1 5139°1986 

507,981 1 5,705,306 
1 ,2 1 7,763 

435,61 8 {680,933) 

9431599 1 6124211 36 

$ 1 .099.556 $ 31 .633.1 22 



Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 

Other 

Total operat ing reven ues 

Operating expenses: 
Beaches and marinas 
W aste management 

Bui ld ing and zon i ng 
Golf cou rse 

Depreciation 

Employee benefits 

Total operating expenses 

Operating i ncome ( loss) 

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 
I nterest on i nvestment 
I nterest on debt 

TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEM BER 31, 2008 

NON-MAJOR 
BUSINESS-TYPE 

MAJOR BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 

Beaches and Waste Bu i lding and Golf 
Marinas Management Zoning Course 

$ 1 ,363,697 $ 1 ,965 , 1 97 $ 3,348,958 $ 807,998 
1 1 5 ,91 7 646 1 ,079 

1 ,363,697 2,08 1 ,1 1 4  3,349,604 809,077 

1 , 1 47,463 
1 ,740,588 

2 ,594,776 
688,744 

274, 1 1 6  228,91 3 38,832 1 3,420 
93,763 1 23,850 953,695 

1 ,51 5 ,342 2,093,351 3,587,303 702,1 64 

(1 51 ,645) (1 2,237) (237,699) 1 06,91 3 

1 2 ,690 2 ,928 71 ,747 1 ,006 
{200,237l {92,930� 

Total non-operat ing reven ues (expenses) {1 87z547� {90z002� 71 z747 1 z006 

I ncome ( loss) before transfers 

Transfers i n  
Transfers out 

Change in  net assets 

Total net assets, beg inn ing  of year, 
as restated 

Total net assets, end of year $ 

(339 , 1 92) ( 1 02,239) ( 1 65,952) 

1 87,000 
{362,977l {930,389� {50,000� 

(702, 1 69) (845,628) (2 1 5,952) 

1 1  z558z868 1 171 311 1 4  317901304 

1 0.856.699 $ 867.486 $ 3.574.352 

The accompanyi ng notes to f inancial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 
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1 07,91 9 

{57,000� 

50,9 1 9  

892z680 

$ 943.599 

Total 
Pro�rietary Funds 

$ 7,485,850 
1 1 7z642 

7,603,492 

1 , 1 47,463 
1 ,740,588 
2 ,594,776 

688,744 
555 ,281 

1 , 1 7 1 ,308 

7,898,1 60 

(294,668) 

88,371 
{293, 1 67l 

{204z796} 

(499,464) 

1 87,000 
P ,400,366� 

( 1 ,71 2 ,830) 

1 719541966 

$ 1 6.242.1 36 



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue collected: 

Cash receipts from customers 
Other operating cash receipts 

Payments for expenses: 
Cash payments to other suppliers of goods or services 
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfer from other funds 
Transfer to other funds 

Net cash used by noncaptial f inancing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest and earnings received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
Accounts receivable 
Due from fiduciary funds 
Due from governmental funds 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to fiduciary funds 
Due to governmental funds 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenues 
Compensated absences 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 311 2008 

MAJOR BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Beaches and Waste 

Marinas Management 

$ 1 ,363,697 $ 2,040,676 
1 1 5 ,91 7 

( 1 ,21 8 ,034) 1 ,735 
(1 3,763) {123,850} 

1 31 ,900 2,034 ,478 

1 87,000 
(362,977} (930,389} 

(362,977) (743,389) 

(202,621 ) ( 1 ,979,647) 
(247,460) (61 ,000) 
(200,237) (92,930) 

(650,31 8) (2,1 33,577) 

1 2,690 2,928 
1 2 ,690 2,928 

(868,705) (839,560) 

623,541 564,955 

$ (245 1 64) $ (274 605) 

$ ( 1 5 1 ,645) $ ( 1 2 ,237) 

274, 1 1 6  228 ,9 1 3  
75 ,479 

(4,699,704) 
3,055,000 2,755,303 

43,527 
(5,346) ( 1 3,276) 

( 1 2 , 1 24) ( 1 37,897) 
1 , 1 23,640 

1 ,703,650 (2,082,692) 
(43,527) 

1 1 ,480 53,71 8 

$ 1 3 1 ,900 $ 2,034,478 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 
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NON-MAJOR 
BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES 
Building and Golf Total 

Zoning Course -Proprietary Funds 

$ 3,330,052 $ 809,077 $ 7,543,502 
1 1 5 ,91 7 

(2,722,640) (625 , 1 1 3) (4,564,052) 
{953,695} {1,09 1 ,308) 

{346,283} 1 83,964 2,004,059 

1 87,000 
(50,000} (57,000) (1,400,366) 

(50,000) (57,000) (1 ,21 3,366) 

(60,475) (2,242,7 43) 
(308,460) 
(293,1 67} 

(60,475) (2,844,370) 

7 1,747 1,006 88,371 
71 ,747 1,006 88,371 

(324,536) 67,495 ( 1 ,965,306) 

3,975,61 6  51 3,461 5,677,573 

$ 3 651  080 $ 580 956 ...i 3.71 2.267 

$ (237,699) $ 1 06,91 3  $ (294,668) 

38,832 1 3,420 555 ,281 
( 1 9 ,552) 55,927 

( 1 0,61 9) (4,71 0,323) 
(40,245) 5 ,770,058 

43,527 
( 1 00,89 1 )  ( 1 1 9 ,51 3) 
( 1 32,368) 9 ,728 (272,66 1 )  

1 5 ,033 1 , 1 38,673 
64,522 (31 4,520) 

(43,527) 
1 9,849 1 9,849 

1 1 0,758 1 75,956 

$ (346,283) $ 1 83,964 $ 2,004,059 



TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
STATEM ENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEM BER 31 , 2008 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Due from enterprise funds 
Due from governmental funds 
Service award program assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Consol idated payrol l  
Due to enterprise funds 
Due to governmental funds 
Due to school d istricts 
Due to the Law Enforcement Services 
Bai l l iabi l ity 
Service award program l iab i l it ies 
Other agency l iabi l it ies 

Total l iab i l it ies 

The accompanying notes to f inancial statements are an 
i ntegral part of this statement. 
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Agency 
Funds 

$ 63,294,087 
1 , 1 38,673 
6 , 1 44,099 

704,502 

$ 7 1 1281 1361 

$ 4,7 1 8 
4,71 0,323 
4,224,028 

37,975,802 
6,333 

408,689 
704,502 

23,246,966 

$ 7 1 1281 1361 



TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31 , 2008 

1 .  BACKGROUND AND CURRENT CONSIDERATIONS 

The Town of Southampton (the ''Town'') , was establ ished in 1 80 1  and is governed by Town Law and other 
general laws of the State of New York and various local laws. The Town Board is the legislative body 
responsible for overall operations. The Town Board consists of the Supervisor who is elected for a term of two 
years and four council members who are elected for terms of fou r  years. The Town Board appoints the Town 
Attorney, Comptrol ler and the Commissioner of Publ ic Works whose terms are fixed by Town Law. The Town 
Clerk, the Superintendent of H ighways and Receiver of Taxes are elected and both serve for four years. The 
Town provides a ful l  range of mun icipal services, including publ ic safety, transportation , home and community 
services, public works and road maintenance, recreation and parks, and general and adm inistrative services. 

Duri ng the 2009 f iscal year, the Town conducted an i nternal evaluation of ongoing capital projects with in 
i ts Capital Projects Fund. As a result of thei r internal evaluation , the Town Board voted to contract a 
forensic accounting f i rm to conduct a forensic i nvestigation of al l capital projects from 2003 to 2007 
occu rring within the Capital Projects Fund . The forensic i nvest igation is cu rrently in process and 
pre l im inary f ind ings ind icate there may be unrecorded Town Board Resolut ions authorizing the transfer of 
monies from various Funds of the Town to the Capital Projects Fund, un issued capital project debt and 
overexpended capital projects. However, as of December 22, 2009, the forensic investigation is not yet 
complete and the adjustments, if any, to the opening fund balances of the General Fund and Capital 
Projects Fund and net assets of the Enterprise Funds have not been determ ined. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Town of Southampton have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental un its. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establ ishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Report ing entity 

The f inancial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government, which is the Town of Southampton; 
(b) organizations for which the primary government is financial ly accountable; and (c) other organ izations 
for which the nature and significance of their  relationship with the primary government are such that 
exclusion would cause the reporting entity's f inancial statements to be m islead ing or incomplete as set 
forth in GASB Statement No. 1 4, The Financial Report ing Entity, as amended by GASB Statement 39, 
Com ponent U nits. 

The decision to include a potential component unit in  the Town of Southampton reporting entity is based 
on several criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 1 4, The Financial Reporting E ntity, as amended by 
GASB Statement 39, Component Un its, including legal standing, dependency and financial 
accountabi l ity. Based on the appl ication of these criteria, a summary of certain entities considered in 
determ ining the Town of Southampton's reporting entity is d iscussed below. 
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The Trustees of the Freeholders and Commonalty of the Town of Southampton (the ''Trustees'') are 
independently elected and are responsible for the receipt, maintenance and safety of legal ly specified 
property. Operations are supported by user fee revenues establ ished by the Trustees and derived from 
the issuance of bui ld ing,  mooring and boat ramp permits, as wel l  as budgeted appropriations from the 
Town. The Town approves the hiring of employees and records the compensation of most employees as 
wel l  as, all of the capital projects of the Trustees on the books of the Town. The Trustees is accounted 
for as a blended component unit of the Town and is reported as a special revenue fund in the non-major 
governmental funds. Complete f inancial statements of the Trustees can be obtained from their 
adm inistrative office: The Trustees of the Freeholders and Commonalty of the Town of Southampton, 
1 1 6 Hampton Road, Southampton, N.Y. 1 1 968. 

The Town of Southampton Housing Authority (the "Authority" ) ,  is a l im ited profit entity that provides 
housing for low income residents of the Town of Southampton. The Authority is governed by its Board of 
Directors, which is comprised of five members appOinted by the Town of Southampton. Long-term debt 
that is backed by the ful l  faith and credit of the Town, and other fiscal matters result in a fiscal 
interdependency with the Town. Accordingly, the Town of Southampton Housing Authority has been 
determ ined to be a component unit of the Town and is presented d iscretely in a separate column in the 
government-wide financial statements to emphasis that they are legal ly separate from the primary 
government. Complete financial statements of the component unit can be obtained from their 
adm inistrative offices: Town of Southampton Housing Authority, 1 1 6 Hampton Road, Southampton, NY 
1 1 968. 

Within the geographic boundaries of the Town are seven i ncorporated vi l lages, 21 ham lets, 1 3  school 
districts, and nine f ire d istricts. These entities are excluded from the Town's financial statements because 
their operations are controlled by officials elected by their respective constituencies and the Town has no 
fiscal responsibi l ities to them and cannot influence their operations. 

A joint ventu re is a legal entity or other organization that resu lts from a contractual agreement and that 
is owned, operated or governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject 
to joint control in wh ich the participants retain  (a) an ongoing f inancial i nterest or (b) an on-going 
f inancial responsibi l ity. The Town participates i n  the fol lowing joint ventu re:  

The Town of Southam pton and the Town of East Hampton entered i nto an inter-mun icipal 
agreement to purchase and operate a publ ic golf cou rse, drivi ng range, and related faci l it ies, 
known as the Poxabogue Golf Course. The Towns share equal and und ivided ownership of 
the Golf Cou rse and share equal ly a l l  profits or losses of operat ing and mainta in ing the Golf 
Course. The Poxabogue Golf Course is presented as a non-major fund in the proprietary fund 
f inancial statements. Complete f inancial statements for the Town of East Hampton can be 
obtained from the Town of East Hampton ,  1 59 Pantigo Road, East Hampton ,  NY 1 1 937. 

B. Basis of presentation 

The Town's basic f inancial statements i nc lude both government-wide ( report ing the Town as a whole) 
and fund f inancial statements ( reporting the Town's major funds) . 

1 .  Government-wide statements 

The government-wide f inancial statements report i nformation on the Town as a whole, as wel l  
as  the  discrete ly presented component un it ,  excluding f iduciary activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the Town's governmental activities are 
p resented on a consol idated basis and are reported on a fu l l  accrual ,  economic resou rce basis, 
which recognizes al l long-term assets and receivables as wel l  as long-term debt and 
obl igations. The Town's net assets are reported in  three parts - i nvested i n  cap ital assets , net 
of related debt, restricted net assets and unrestricted net assets. 
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The government-wide Statement of Activit ies reports both the g ross and net cost of each of the 
Town's functional categories (general government support, publ ic safety, transportation,  home 
and comm unity services, etc . ) ,  which are otherwise supported by general government 
revenues ( real property tax, certain i ntergovernmental revenues, f ines, perm its and charges, 
etc . ) .  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses ( includ ing depreciation) by related 
p rogram revenues to produce the net cost of each program . Program revenues include (a) 
charges for services and (b) operating and capital g rants and contributions that are d i rectly 
associated with the function . Operating grants include operat ing-specific and d iscretionary 
(either operating or cap ital) grants whi le the capital g rants column  reflects capital-specific 
g rants. The net costs (by function) are normal ly covered by general revenue (property taxes, 
i ntergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc . ) .  

As a general ru le ,  the effect of interfund activity has been el im inated from the government-wide 
financial statements. E l im inations have been made to prevent d istortion of the d i rect costs and 
p rogram revenues reported. Sales and purchases of goods and services for a price 
approximating their external value are not e l im inated between the funds i n  the government­
wide financial statements. 

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainabi l ity of the Town as an entity and the 
change in  the Town's net assets result ing f rom the current year's act ivities. 

2. Fund statements 

The fund statements provide information about the Town's funds, i nc lud ing proprietary and 
f iduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category (governmental ,  proprietary and 
f iduciary) are presented. The emphasis is on the major funds in the fund financial statements. 
Non-major funds are summarized into a single column.  

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, l iabi l ities, fund balances, revenues, and 
expenditu res, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining 
certain objectives in accordance with special regu lations, restrictions or l im itations. The various 
funds are presented by type in the fund financial statements. Accordingly, the Town maintains the 
fol lowing fund types: 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions 
are financed. The acqu isition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources and the 
related l iabi l ities are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus of the 
governmental funds is upon determ ination of financial position and changes in  f inancial position. 
Government funds are further classified as major and non-major funds. 

The Town reports the fol lowing major governmental funds: 

General Fund: is the principal operating fund of the Town. This fund is used to account for all 
f inancial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 

Police District: is used to account for financial resources for pol ice purposes. 

Capital Projects Fund: is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acqu isition or 
construction of major capital faci l ities. 

Com m unity Preservation and Park Districts: is used to account for f inancial resources for land 
acqu isit ion and park pu rposes. 

Debt Service Fund: is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of debt 
principal, interest, and related costs. 

Additional ly, the Town reports the fol lowing non-major funds: 

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other 
than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditu res for specified pu rposes. 
Special Revenue Funds include the fol lowing: 
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Town Outside Vi l lage Fund: is used for f inancial resources for certain services provided to the 
area of the Town located outside of Incorporated Vil lages. 

Special G rants Fund: is used to account for federal aid for the Community Development Block 
G rant and Housing and U rban Development Grant. 

Special Revenue Fund: is used to account for f inancial resources for special purposes. 

H ighway Fund: is used to account for f inancial resources for highway purposes. 

Trustees of the Freeholders and Commonalty: is used to account for f inancial resources for the 
preservation and protection of the waterways. 

Public Safety Com m unications: is used to account for f inancial resources for the operation of the 
E-91 1 communication faci l ity. 

Education Governmental Channel: is used to account for f inancial resources to provide a forum 
for editorial and publ ic discourse on educational issues as wel l  as government relations and police 
and emergency services. 

Special District Funds - are used to account for taxes or other revenues, which are raised or 
received to provide special services to areas that encompass less than the whole Town. The 
Special District Funds consist of a number of separate districts, which are administered by the 
Town Board as follows: 

Fire Protection Districts: 
North End Quogue 
Baypoint 

Lighting Districts: 
Eastport 
Westhampton 
East Quogue 
Riverside 
Water Mi l l  

Parking Districts: 
Hampton Bays 

Water Districts: 
Flanders 

Ambulance Districts: 
Westhampton 
Hampton Bays 

Coastal Erosion 

3. Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 

Noyac 

Flanders 
Quogue 
Hampton Bays 
Bridgehampton 

Bridgeham pton 

Hampton Bays 

Northampton 
Southam pton 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets and a Statement of Cash Flows for each 
major proprietary fund and the non-major fund. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and l iabil ities (whether cu rrent or non-current) 
are included on the Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in  Fund Net Assets present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net 
assets. 
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U nder the accrual basis of accounting,  revenues are recognized i n  the period in which they 
are earned whi le expenses are recognized in the period in which the l iab i l ity is i ncurred. 
Proprietary funds dist inguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operati ng revenues and expenses general ly resu lt f rom provid ing services and producing and 
del ivering goods i n  connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoi ng operations. The 
principal operati ng revenues of the Beaches and Marinas, Waste Management, Bui ld ing and 
Zoning Funds and Golf Course are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds i nc lude the cost of sales and services, adm inistrative expenses, 
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting the def in it ion are 
reported as non-operati ng revenues and expenses. W hen both restricted and unrestricted 
resources are avai lable for use, it is the Town's pol icy to use restricted resources f i rst , then 
unrestricted resou rces as they are needed .  

The Town appl ies a l l  appl icable Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB) Statements 
and I nterpretations, issued after November 30, 1 989, except those that confl ict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements to its business-type activities. 

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Enterprise Funds: used to account for the fol lowing operations: 

Beaches and Marinas: used to account for operations related to the Town's beaches and 
marinas. 

Waste Management: used to account for operations related to the Town's refuse. 

Bui ld ing and Zoning: used to account for bui lding and zoning operations. 

Additional ly, the Town reports the fol lowing non-major proprietary fund: 

Golf Course: used to account for operations related to Poxabogue Golf Course. 

4. Fiduciary Funds: 

The fiduciary funds are used to account for the assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity or 
as agency for individuals, private organizations, and thei r governments. These activities are not 
included in the government-wide f inancial statements, because their resources do not belong to 
the Town, and are not avai lable to be used. 

The Town reports the fol lowing fiduciary funds: 

Agency Fund: is for money (and/or property) received and held in the capacity of trustee, 
custodian or agent. The Town's f iduciary funds include agency funds as fol lows: 

Town Agency Fund: accounts for consol idated payrol l ,  amounts due to/from other governments, 
service award programs and other agency l iabi l ities. 

Town Receiver of Taxes Agency Fund: accounts for amounts due to other governments for 
general and school taxes collected. 

Town Clerk Agency Fund: accounts for amounts due to other governments for l icense and perm it 
fees. 

Justice Court Agency Fund: accounts for amounts due to other governments and bai l  l iabi l ity. 
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5. Discretely Presented Component U nit 

The Town of Southampton Housing Authority is governed by its Board of Directors, which is 
comprised of five members appointed by the Town of Southampton.  Long-term debt that is  
backed by the fu l l  faith and credit of  the Town, and other fiscal matters result in a fiscal 
interdependency with the Town. Accordingly the Town of Southampton Housing Authority has 
been determined to be a discretely presented component un it. 

C. Measurement focus and basis of accounting 

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured whereas the basis of accounting refers to when 
revenues and expenditu res are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
Basis of accounting relates to the tim ing of the measu rement made, regardless of the measurement focus 
appl ied. 

In the government-wide financial statements, governmental activities are presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus and are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the 
l iabil ity is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and l iabi l ities 
resu lting from exchange and exchange-l ike transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds use a current f inancial resources measurement 
focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. U nder the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (measurable and available to 
finance current operations) . "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determ ined and 
"available" means col lectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay l iabi l ities of the 
current period. 

The Town considers all revenues avai lable if they are col lected within  60 days after the year end. 
Revenues susceptible to accrual include mortgage tax, franch ise fees, charges for services, 
i ntergovernmental revenues and operating transfers. Permits, fees, and other sim i lar revenues are not 
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until they are received in cash. I n  
those instances where expenditures are the prime factor in  determ ining el igibi l ity for state and  federal 
grants, revenues are recognized when the expenditure is incurred. In the Capital Projects Fund, long­
term debt is recognized as revenue upon receipt of the proceeds. Expenditures are recorded on the 
accrual basis except that (a) expenditures for prepaid expenses are recognized when incurred,  (b) 
principal and interest on indebtedness are recognized as expenditures when due and (c) compensated 
absences, such as vacation and sick leave, which vest or accumulate, are charged as expenditu res when 
paid . 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments are recorded 
for budgetary control pu rposes in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed 
in the governmental funds. Appropriations for all governmental funds except the Capital Projects Fund 
lapse at year-end.  However, encumbrances reserved against fund balances are re-appropriated in  the 
ensu ing year. Encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute 
expenditures or l iabi l ities. Expenditu res for such commitments are recorded in the period in wh ich the 
l iabi l ity is incurred. 

D.  Property taxes 

I n  Suffolk County, the assessment and l ien of real property for taxation is done by the County Department 
of Assessment. The County assessment rolls are used for the levy of real property taxes by the Town 
and the school districts, as wel l  as by the County and by special d istricts of the County and the Town. 
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The Town of Southampton Receiver of Taxes ("Receiver" ) collects al l  real property taxes for the Town, 
Suffolk County, Town special districts and school d istricts located within the Town of Southampton as a 
single bi l l .  Town and County taxes are levied on December 1 st. and are due in two equal instal lments, 
payable without penalty on January 1 0th and May 31 st. respectively. Penalties are imposed thereafter at 
the rate of 1 % per month from January 1 0th unti l  May 31 st. after which taxes are payable to the County 
Treasurer. The Receiver collects all taxes based on this single bi l l  and distributes the proceeds to the 
Town Supervisor prior to distributing the remain ing balance collected to the County. Responsibi l ity for the 
col lection of unpaid taxes rests with the County and, accordingly, the Town is assured of 1 00% col lection 
of real p roperty taxes. 

E. I nterfund transactions 

I nterfund transactions have been e l im inated from the government-wide fi nancial statements. In the 
funds statements, interfund transactions i nclude: 

1 .  Interfund revenues 

Interfund revenues and interfund services provided and used, in  the General Fund represent 
amounts charged for services or faci l ities provided by the General Fund. The amounts paid by 
the fund receiving the benefits of the service or faci l ities are reflected as an expenditu re of that 
fund. 

2 .  Transfers 

Transfers represent payments to the Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds from the other 
funds for their appropriate share of the debt service or capital project costs. 

F. Estimates 

The preparation of f inancial statements in conform ity with accounting principles general ly accepted i n  
the U n ited States o f  America requ i res management t o  make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and l iabi l it ies and d isclosu re of contingent assets and l iabi l it ies at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported revenues and expenses duri ng the reporting period . 
Actual resu lts could d iffer from those estim ates. Est imates and assumptions are made in a variety of 
areas, incl ud ing computation of encumbrances, com pensated absences, potential contingent l iabi l it ies 
and usefu l  l ives of long-l ived assets. 

G. Cash and investments 

Cash consists of funds deposited in demand accounts, t ime deposit accounts and certificates of deposit 
with maturities of less than three months. 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers al l highly l iquid investments with a 
maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local government investment pools to be cash 
equivalents. 

H. Receivables 

Receivables include amounts due from federal , state and other governments or entities for services 
provided by the Town. Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized as earned or as specific 
program expenditures are incurred. 

I . I nventory - materials and supplies 

Inventory in the proprietary funds is valued at cost, using weighted average cost method. I nventory in 
these funds is accounted for under the consumption method. 

J. Prepaids 

Prepaids in  the government-wide statements represent ret i rement benefits and insu rance that wi l l  
benefit a futu re period. 
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K. Restricted assets 

Certain assets of the Water District and Comm unity Preservation and Park Districts are classified as 
restricted assets because their use is restricted by contractual agreements and regulations. 

L. Capital assets 

Capital assets pu rchased or acqu i red with an origi nal cost of $ 1 0 ,000 or more are reported at h istorical 
cost or est imated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date 
received. Add it ions, i m provements and other capital outlays that s ignificantly extend the usefu l  l ife of 
an asset are capital ized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as i ncurred. 
Depreciation on a l l  assets is provided on the straight- l ine basis over the fol lowing estimated usefu l  
l ives: 

Bu i ld i ngs 
Improvements other than bu i ld i ngs 
Machinery and equipment 
I nfrastructure -

Bridges 
Landfi l l  
Roads, curbs and sidewalks 
Lighting system 
Bu lkheads, piers and boardwalks 
Water and sewer mains 

25-50 years 
20 years 

5-30 years 

50 years 
30 years 

20-30 years 
1 5  years 

1 0-30 years 
65 years 

I nfrastructure assets, consisting of certain improvements other than bui ld ings including, bridges, 
easements, roads, curbs, sidewalks, l ighting systems, bulkheads, piers, boardwalks, drainage, water 
mains, and sewer systems are capitalized along with other capital assets. 

I n  the fund f inancial statements, capital assets are recorded as cap ital outlay expend itu res in the 
governmental fund upon acqu isit ion. 

M. Premiums on debt issuance 

Prem iums related to the issuance of long-term debt are amortized on a straight- l ine basis over the l ife of 
the issue and are presented as part of general obl igation bonds payable. 

N. Deferred charges 

Discounts and expenses related to the issuance of long-term debt and the loss on the early retirement of 
refunded debt are amortized on a straight- l ine basis over the l ife of the issue, and are presented net of 
accum ulated amortization. 

O.  Deferred revenues 

Deferred revenues are reported when potential revenues do not meet both the measurable and 
avai lable criteria for recogn it ion in the current period . Deferred revenues also arise when the Town 
receives resources before it has legal claim to them,  as when grant monies are received prior to 
incurring qual ifying expenditu res. I n  subsequent periods, when both recognit ion criteria are met, or 
when the Town has legal claim to the resou rces, the l iabi l ity for deferred revenues is removed and 
revenues are recorded. 

P. Long-term obl igations 

The l iabi l ities for long-term obl igations consisting of general obligation bonds, due to Employees' 
Reti rement System ,  compensated absences, claims and judgments, other post-employment benefits and 
l iabi l ity for landf i l l  closure and postclosure costs are recognized in the government-wide financial 
statements . 

In the fund financial statements, long-term obl igations are not reported as l iabi l it ies. The debt proceeds 
are reported as other f inancing sources and payment of pri nc ipa l  and interest are reported as 
expend itu res . 
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Q. Compensated absences 

The l iabi l ity for vested or accumulated vacation or sick leave (compensated absences) is recorded as 
cu rrent and noncurrent obl igations in the government-wide f inancial statements. The current portion 
of this l iabi l ity is estimated based on historical trends. Compensated absence l iab i l ity and expense are 
reported i n  the governmental funds only if they have matu red , for example, as a result of employee 
resignation and reti rements. 

The amount that is expected to be l iquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as 
expenditures and a l iabi l ity in the fund f inancial statements in the respective fund that wi l l  pay it. 

R. Equity classifications 

Government-wide financial statements 

I n  the government-wide financial statements there are three classes of net assets: 

I nvested in capital assets, net of related debt: consists of net capital assets (cost less accum ulated 
depreciation) reduced by outstanding balances of related debt obl igations from the acqu isition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net assets: reports net assets when constraints placed on the assets are either externally 
imposed by creditors (such through debt covenants), grantors, contributors,  or laws or regulations of other 
governments,  or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabl ing legislation. 

Unrestricted net assets : reports al l  other net assets that do not meet the def in ition of the above two 
classif ications and are deemed to be avai lable for general use by the Town. 

Fund financial statements 

In the fund f inancial statements, governmental fund equ ity is classified as fund balance. Fund 
balance is  further classified as reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further spl it between 
designated and u ndesignated. Portions of fund equity are segregated for futu re use and therefore not 
available for future appropriation or expenditure. Amounts reserved for encumbrances, bond retirement, 
tax stabil ization and community preservation represent portions of fund equ ity, which are required to be 
segregated in accordance with state or local law or GAAP. Designations of fund balances in  
governmental funds indicate the uti l ization of  these resources in  the subsequent year's budget or tentative 
plans for futu re use. 

3. EXPLAINATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNM ENTAL FUN DS FINANCIAL 
STATEM ENTS AND GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Due to the d ifferences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the fund f inancial 
statements and the government-wide financial statements, certain  f inancial transactions are treated 
d ifferently. The basic f inancial statements contain a fu l l  reconci l iat ion of these items. The d ifferences 
resu lt primari ly from the economic focus of the Statement of Activities, compared with the cu rrent f inancial 
resources focus of the governmental funds. 

A. Total fund balances of governmental funds vs . net assets of governmental activities 

Total fund balances of the Town's governm ental funds d iffer from "net assets" of governmental 
activities reported in the Statement of Net Assets. This d ifference primari ly resu lts from the additional 
long-term econom ic focus of the Statement of Net Assets versus the solely cu rrent f inancial resources 
focus of the governmental funds Balance Sheet. 

B. Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditu res and Changes i n  Fund Equ ity (Deficit) vs. Statement of Activit ies 

Differences between the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Equ ity (Deficit) and the Statement of Activities fal l i nto one of the fou r broad categories. The 
categories are shown be low: 
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1 .  Long-term revenue/expense d ifferences 

Long-term revenue d ifferences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when they 
are considered "avai lab le", whereas the Statement of Activities reports revenues when earned. 
Differences in  long-term expenses arise because governmental funds report on a mod ified accrual 
basis, whereas the accrual  basis of accounting is used on the Statement of Activit ies. 

2 .  Capital related d ifferences 

Capital related d ifferences include the d ifference between proceeds from the sale of cap ital assets 
reported on governmental fund f inancial statements and the gain or loss on the sale of assets as 
reported on the Statement of Activities, and the d ifference between record ing an expenditu re for 
the purchase of capital items in the governmental fund f inancial statements and depreciation 
expense on those items as recorded in  the Statement of Activities. 

3. Long-term debt transaction d ifferences 

Long-term debt transaction d ifferences occur because both interest and principal payments are 
recorded as expenditu res i n  the governmental fund financial statements, whereas i nterest 
payments are recorded in the Statement of Activities as i ncurred, and pri ncipal payments are 
recorded as a reduction of l iab i l it ies in the Statement of Net Assets. 

4. Reclassifications and e l im inations 

Reclassifications and e l im inations arise because the Statement of Activities reports program 
revenues (either charges for services or operating grants) net of their d i rect expenses. All other 
revenues are categorized as general revenues. Certain expenses have been reclassified so that 
a l l  identifiable program expenses are accounted for with in thei r proper program , such as the 
al location of employee benefits and depreciation expense. Governmental funds account for all 
revenues and expenses based on their function .  

4. STEWARDSHIP, COM PLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary data 

The Town follows the procedures enumerated below in  establ ishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1 .  On or before September 20th, each department, office or district submits to the Budget Officer 
and the Comptrol ler a deta i led est imate of the budget known as "departmental estimates" for the 
amount of revenue to be received and expenditures to be made for the ensu ing year. 

2.  On or before September 30th , the Budget Officer f i les with the Town Clerk and the Comptrol ler 
and p resents to the Town Board a tentative budget for the ensu ing year. 

3. On or before October 5th, the Town Board reviews the tentative budget and fi les a prel im inary 
budget with the Town Clerk. 

4. The Town Board conducts a public hearing on the prel im inary budget and on or before November 
20th; the Town Board meets to adopt the budget now known as the "annual budget". 

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device for the 
General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund. The Town Board 
adopts the budget and establishes legal level of control of the budget at the object level of 
expenditures. The object level identifies expenditures by the article pu rchased or service obtained 
in  order to carry out a function. Appropriations are adopted at the object level .  Al l budgetary 
amendments and transfers of appropriation require Town Board approval .  Appropriations for al l 
governmental funds except the Capital Projects Fund lapse at year-end. 
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I n  order to show the ful l  legal level of budgetary compl iance for the General and certain Special 
Revenue Funds, detailed individual statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances - budget and actual, are presented in  a separate budget report. 

6 .  Budgets for the General Fund,  certain Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund are 
legally adopted for each year. The budgets are adopted on a basis of accounting consistent with 
GAAP. In the event that actual revenues received exceed budgeted amounts, additional budgetary 
appropriations are made. The Capital Projects and Special G rant Funds are budgeted on a project 
or grant basis. The Special Fund and the Trustees of the Freeholders and Commonalty do not 
have annual ly adopted budgets. 

B.  Fund balances 

Designation of fund balance 

Portions of the unreserved balances at December 31 , 2008 were deSignated for the subsequent year's 
operating budgets and affordable housing as fol lows: 

Total Fund Balance Fund Balance 
Fund Balance Unreserved Unreserved 

Fund Unreserved DeSignated U ndesignated 

Major governmental funds: 
General Fund $ 6,978,750 $ 4,341 ,936 $ 2 ,636,8 1 4  

Non-major funds: 
T own Outside Vil lage 1 95, 1 63 700,000 (504,837) 
Public Safety Communications 46,207 46,207 

Proprietary funds: 
Bui lding and Zoning 3,393,239 1 ,21 7,763 2 , 1 75,476 

Fund deficits 

I ndividual funds with total fund deficits as of December 31 , 2008 were as follows: 

Pol ice District 
Capital Projects 
Community Preservation and Park Districts 
Debt Service 
Fire Protection Districts 
Water Districts 

Fund Deficit 
Unreserved 

and Undesignated 

$ (2 ,726,700) 
(3,504,530) 
(4,695,263) 

(73,836) 
( 1 82,035) 
( 1 59,055) 

Total Fund 
Balance 
(Deficit) 

$ (2,726,700) 
(3,504,530) 
(4,51 9,051  ) 

(73,836) 
( 1 82,035) 
( 1 59,055) 

The Pol ice District Fund deficit resulted from under-budgeting contractual salary increases and use of 
anticipated surplus funds that were not realized over the course of several years. The Town anticipates 
el im inating this deficit through increases in subsequent year budget appropriations, which wi l l  resu lt in  
increased tax assessment for the Pol ice District. 

The Capital Projects Fund deficit resulted from the temporary financing of capital projects with short-term 
bond anticipation notes. This deficit wil l  be el iminated in the futu re when the Town issues permanent 
financing for these projects. 

The Comm unity Preservation and Park District Fund deficit resulted from temporary financing of land 
acqu isitions with short-term bond anticipation notes. This deficit was el im inated in  January 2009 when 
the Town issued permanent financing for these land acqu isitions. 
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The Debt Service Fund deficit resulted from other governmental funds not repaying the Debt Service 
Fund at the end of the year. This deficit wi l l  be el im inated in the upcoming year as the Town has decided 
to discontinue use of a Debt Service Fund. 

The Fire Protection Districts Funds deficit resulted from unanticipated increases in  electric costs. The 
Town anticipates el im inating this deficit through increases in subsequent year budget appropriations, 
which wil l  result in  i ncreased tax assessment for the Fire Protection Districts. 

The Water Districts Funds deficit resulted from unanticipated increases in util ity costs. The Town 
anticipates el im inating this deficit through increases in subsequent year budget appropriations, which wi l l  
result in increased tax assessment for the Water Districts. 

Bond covenants 

The Town may not have compl ied with restrictions on certain bond covenants due to the possibi l ity the 
Town may have expended bond monies on projects that were not covered in the bond issuance. The 
Town's bond counsel is unable to determine the potential impact relating to this possible noncompl iance 
unti l the forensic investigation , as more ful ly discussed in Note 1 ,  is completed. 

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - CUSTODIAL CREDIT, CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT, INTEREST 
RATE AND FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS 

Cash consists of funds deposited in demand accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with 
maturities of less than three months. 

The Town's investments are governed by a formal investment pol icy. The Town's monies must be deposited 
in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The Town is authorized to use 
certificates of deposit, N.O.W. ,  super N.O.W. accounts and money market deposit accounts. 

It is the Town's pol icy to require col lateral held in the name of the Town for demand deposits, money market 
deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obl igations that 
may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies and obl igations of the State 
and its municipalities and school d istricts. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits/Investments - Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when, in the event of the 
fai lure of a depository financial institution , a government may be unable to recover deposits, or recover 
collateral securities that are in posseSSion of an outside agency. Custodial credit risk for investments exists 
when, in the event of the failu re of the counterparty, a government wi l l  not be able to recover the value of its 
investments or col lateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and I nvestment R isk Disclosures, d i rects that deposits be disclosed as 
exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance, and the deposits are either: 

• Uncol lateralized 
• Col lateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution , or 
• Col lateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent 

but not in the Town's name 

At December 31 , 2008, the Town's book balances were $1 03,276,61 6. The Town's bank deposit balances 
were $1 07,551 ,931 , of which $3, 1 8 1 ,699 was covered by the Federal Deposit I nsurance Corporation, 
$91 ,494,428 was covered by collateral held by the Town's agent, a third-party financial institution, in  the 
Town's name and $1 2,51 2,069 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or 
its trust, in the name of the Town. 

At December 31 , 2008, the Town's component unit's book balances were $80,461 . The Town's component 
un it's bank deposit balances were $82,965, of which, the entire balance was covered by Federal Deposit 
I nsurance Corporation. 

Credit R isk - State law and Town law l im it investments to those authorized by State statutes. The Town has a 
written investment pol icy. 
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I nterest-Rate R isk - Interest-rate risk arises because potential purchasers of debt securities wi l l  not agree to 
pay face value for those securities if interest rates substantially increase, thereby afford ing potential 
purchasers more favorable rates on essential ly equivalent securities. Accordingly, such investments would 
have to be held to matu rity to avoid a potential loss. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - Credit risk can arise as a result of fai lure to adequately diversify investments. 
Concentration risk d isclosure is requ i red for positions of 5 percent or more in securities of a single issuer. 

As of December 31 , 2008, the Town of Southampton did not have any investments subject to credit risk, 
interest-rate risk or concentration of credit risk. 

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

I nterfund receivable and payable balances for the primary government at December 31 , 2008 represent 
primarily the payment of operating expenditures that wi l l  be reimbursed subsequent to year end and are 
stated as fol lows: 

Amount Amount 
Receivable Payable 

Major Governmental Funds: 
General Fund $ 5 , 1 99,698 $ 2,261 ,260 
Pol ice District Fund 3,884,465 4,494,206 
Capital Projects Fund 3,537,984 2,400,287 
Community Preservation and 

Park Districts Fund 472,003 
Debt Service Fund 977,401 880,604 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 1 ,345,732 1 , 1 33,807 
Major Business-Type Funds: 

Beaches and Marinas 4,699,704 4 , 1 00,582 
Waste Management 3,084,264 
Bui lding and Zoning 40,245 1 5,033 

Non-Major Business-Type Funds 1 0,61 9 1 46,229 
Agency Funds 72282J72 829342351 

$ 27,450,623 $ 27,45Q,623 

Interfund transfer balances for the primary government at December 31 , 2008 represent primarily the payment 
of operating and capital expenditures in addition to general obligation bond and bond antiCipation note 
prinCipal and interest and are stated as follows: 

Transfers Transfers 
I n  Out 

Major Governmental Funds: 
General Fund $ 1 ,553,209 $ 8,070,538 
Pol ice District Fund 5, 1 35 1 03,043 
Capital Projects Fund 4,726,654 1 85,400 
Community Preservation and 

Park Districts Fund 1 ,229,634 8 , 1 92,440 
Debt Service Fund 1 4,803,269 582, 1 43 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 673,646 4,644,61 7 
Major Business-Type Funds: 

Beaches and Marinas 362,977 
Waste Management 1 87,000 930,389 
Bui lding and Zoning 50,000 

Non-Major Business-Type Funds 572000 

$ 23,1 78 547 $ 23 1 78 547 
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7. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental Funds capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31 , 2008 were as 
fol lows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 388,01 8,709 $ 69,966,775 $ $ 457,985,484 

Total $ 388 01 8,709 $ 69,966.775 $ 457,985,484 

Depreciable capital assets: 
Bui ld ings $ 29,569,426 $ 8 , 1 82,781 $ 37,752,207 
Improvements other than bui ld ings 1 1 ,231 ,093 2 ,526,41 7  1 3,757,51 0 
Machinery and equipment 20,552,477 1 ,994,71 2 22,547, 1 89 
I nfrastructure -

Bridges 953,673 1 6,437 970, 1 1 0 
Landfi l l  9,352,543 59,972 9,4 1 2,51 5 
Roads, curbs and sidewalks 333,570,803 2 , 1 66,031 335,736,834 
Lighting system 1 ,349,791 1 ,349,791 
Bulkheads, piers and boardwalks 8,998,343 55,388 9,053,731 
Water and sewer mains 729262842 7852327 8271 221 69 

Total depreciable capital assets $ 423,504,991 $ 1 5.787,065 $ 4392922056 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Bui ld ings $ 6,200,523 $ 584,436 $ 6,784,959 
Improvements other than bui ld ings 4,657,905 431 , 1 1 7  5,089,022 
Machinery and equ ipment 1 0,61 6, 1 1 6  2,037,350 1 2,653,466 
I nfrastructure -

Bridges 1 1 8,672 1 9,073 1 37,745 
Landfi l l  4,026,6 1 1 31 1 ,751 4,338,362 
Roads, curbs and sidewalks 1 33,963, 1 53 1 3, 1 99,978 1 47, 1 63, 1 31 
Lighting system 1 ,2 1 6,990 25,588 1 ,242,578 
Bulkheads, piers and boardwalks 4, 1 2 1 ,729 251 ,347 4,373,076 
Water and sewer mains 226802785 1 242301 228052086 

Total accumulated depreciation $ 1 67,602.484 $ 1 6,984,941 $ 1 842587,425 

Total depreciable capital assets, net 25427042631 

Total capital assets, net $ 71 2,690 1 1 5 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as fol lows: 
General government support $ 1 , 1 24,831 
Public safety 756,002 
Transportation 1 4,01 4,073 
Econom ic assistance and opportunity 89,960 
Culture and recreation 247,700 
Home and community services 7522375 

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 1 6,984 941 
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Enterprise Funds capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31 , 2008 were as fol lows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land � 1 1 201 22803 � � 

Total $ 1 1  ,01 2.803 $ $ 

Depreciable capital assets: 
Bu i ld ings $ 4,979, 1 86 $ 1 , 1 93 $ 
Improvements other than bui ld ings 5,033,436 2 , 1 99,696 
Machinery and equ ipment 2,4952678 41 2854 

Total depreciable capital assets $ 1 2 508 300 $ 2,242 743 $ 

Less accumulated depreciation : 
Bu i ld ings $ 743,934 $ 1 00,028 $ 
Improvements other than bui ld ings 1 87,692 250,051 
Machinery and equipment 1 23322093 205202 

Total accumulated depreciation $ 2 263 71 9 $ 555,281 $ 

Total depreciable capital assets, net 

Total capital assets, net 

Depreciation expense was charged to enterprise functions as follows: 
Beaches and marinas 
Waste management 
Bui ld ing and zoning 
Golf course 

Total enterprise funds depreciation expense 

Deletions 

� 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Ending 
Balance 

1 1 201 22803 

1 1 201 22803 

4,980,379 
7,233, 1 32 
225372532 

1 42751 2043 

843,962 
437,743 

1 2537295 

2281 92000 

1 1 29322043 

22 944 846 

274, 1 1 6 
228,91 3  

38,832 
1 3,420 

555,281 

The Town of Southampton evaluates prom inent events or changes in  c ircumstances affecting capital assets to 
determine whether impairment of a capital asset has occurred. The Town's policy is to record an impairment 
loss in the period when the Town determ ines that the carrying amount of the asset wi l l  not be recoverable. At 
December 31 , 2008, the Town has not recorded any such impairment losses. 

Discretely presented component unit's capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31 , 
2008 were as fol lows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land � 6202500 � � � 6202500 

Total $ 620,500 $ $ 6202500 

Depreciable capital assets: 
Bu i ld ings $ 2 ,441 ,796 $ $ 2,441 ,796 
Site improvements 248,786 248,786 
Equipment 1 32850 24251 7  382367 

Total depreciable capital assets $ 2,455 646 $ 273 303 $ 227282949 

-39-



8. 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Bu i ld ings $ 1 44,876 $ 61 ,045 $ $ 205,921  
Site improvements 2,208 2,208 
Equipment 1 ,979 5,482 7,461 

Total accumulated depreciation $ 1 46.854 $ 68.735 $ 2 1 5,590 

Total depreciable capital assets, net 2,5 1 3,359 

Total capital assets, net $ 3 1 33.859 

Depreciation expense was charged as fol lows: 
Home and community services $ 68.735 

SHORT-TERM DEBT 

Bond anticipation notes (BANs) are used as a temporary means of f inancing capital expenditures in the 
Capital Projects Fund and land acquisitions in the Community Preservation and Park Districts Fund. State law 
requires that BANs issued for capital pu rposes be converted to long-term obligations within five years after the 
original issue date. The notes or renewal thereof may not extend more than two years beyond the original 
date of issue un less a portion is redeemed with in two years and within each 12 month period thereafter. 
Liabil ities for BANs are general ly accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund and Community Preservation and 
Park Districts Fund. BANs are expected to be paid from the proceeds of future bond issues after renewal of 
these notes. These BANs bear interest at various rates from 1 .75% to 2.99% and are due at various dates 
th rough 2009. 

A summary of changes in BANS for the primary government for the year ended December 31 , 2008 is as 
follows: 

Bond Anticipation Notes 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 8 89 1 .000 

Increases 

$ 1 9.695.000 $ 

Reductions 
Ending 

Balance 

2,721 000 $ 25 865 000 

9. LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term l iabi l ity balances and activity for the year are summarized below: 

Amounts 
Beginning Ending Due Within Non-Current 
Balance Increases Reductions Balance One Year Liabilities 

Governmental activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 98,220,400 $ $ 9,968,300 $ 88,252, 1 00 $ 1 0,048,740 $ 78,203,360 
Plus premiums on issuance 1 6 1 096 1 7 01 1  1 44 085 1 7 009 127 076 

Total general obligation bonds 98,381 ,496 9,985,31 1 88,396, 1 85 1 0,065,749 78,330,436 

Special assessment bonds 
with governmental commitment 466,600 69,200 397,400 82,500 314,900 

Due to Employees' Retirement System 77,687 47,671 30,016 24,530 5,486 
Compensated absences 1 0, 1 30,871 452 , 126 920,274 9,662,723 500,000 9, 1 62,723 
Claims and judgments payable 71 3,938 1 50,086 563,852 1 50,000 41 3,852 
Other post-employment benefits 9,041 ,61 8 9,041 ,61 8 9,041 ,61 8 
Estimated liability for landfill closure 

and postclosure care costs 4 1 88 670 435 501 3 753 1 69 1 78 722 3 574 447 

Total governmental activities $ L13 959 262 $ 9493 744 $ 11608043 $ 111 844963 $ 11001 501 $ 100843462 

Business-type activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 7,548,000 $ $ 308,460 $ 7,239,540 $ 518 ,760 $ 6,720,780 
Compensated absences 380,092 383 789 207 81 3 556 068 556 068 

Total business-type activities $ 1928092 $ 383189 $ 516213 $ 1195608 $ 518160 $ 1 2Z6 848 

Discretely presented component unit: 
Mortgage payable $ 3065 Z11 $ $ 31 530  $ 3034181 $ 33436 $ 3000145 
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General obligation bonds - The Town borrows money in order to acquire land or equipment or construct 
bu i ld ings and improvements. This enables the cost of these capital assets to be borne by the present and 
future taxpayers receiving the benefit of the capital assets. These long-term liabi l ities, which are backed by 
the fu l l  faith and credit of the Town, bear i nterest at various rates from 1 .825% to 7.350% and have matu rity 
dates in 2009 through 2025. 

The following is a summary of maturing debt service requirements: 

Primary governmental activities: 
Princi(2al I nterest Total 

Year ended 
December 31 , 

2009 $ 1 0,048,740 $ 3,079,581  $ 1 3, 1 28,32 1 
201 0  1 0,050,980 2,769,247 1 2 ,820,227 
201 1  7,838,880 2,468,727 1 0 ,307,607 
201 2  7,879,680 2,200,36 1  1 0,080,041 
201 3  6,679,780 1 ,925,420 8,605,200 

201 4-201 8 31 ,904,500 6,064,895 37,969,395 
201 9-2023 1 3,699,540 1 , 1 08,772 1 4,808,31 2  
2024-2025 1 502000 621 87 1 5621 87 

$ 88.252.1 00 $ 1 9 623 1 90 $ 1 07 875.290 

Primary business-type activities: 
Princi(2al I nterest Total 

Year ended 
December 312  

2009 $ 51 8,760 $ 281 ,401 $ 800, 1 61 
201 0  532,420 263, 1 94 795,6 1 4  
201 1 537,020 244 , 1 73 781 , 1 93 
201 2  551 ,220 224,540 775,760 
201 3  565,720 203,907 769,627 

201 4-20 1 8 2,867,300 683,036 3,550,336 
201 9-2022 t667J OO 1 522624 1 281 92724 

$ 7 239 540 $ 2,052,875 $ 9 292 4 1 5 

S(2ecial assessment bonds - The Town also has $397,400 of special assessment debt outstanding to provide 
funds for road improvements. These bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the property owners 
benefited by these improvements. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or del inquent 
special assessments at the time a debt service payment is due, the government must provide resources to 
cover the deficiency unti l  other resources are received. The bonds have interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 
4.75% and are payable over the next 1 2  years. 

The following is a summary of maturing debt service requirements: 

Primary governmental activities: 
Princi(2al I nterest Total 

Year ended 
December 312  

2009 $ 82,500 $ 1 5 ,883 $ 98,383 
201 0  56,600 1 2 ,834 69,434 
201 1 44, 1 00 1 0 ,433 54,533 
201 2  44, 1 00 8,61 3 52,71 3 
201 3  44,500 6,775 5 1 ,275 

201 4-201 8 1 08,200 1 4, 1 96 1 22,396 
201 9-2020 1 7AOO 1 2044 1 8A44 

$ 397,400 $ 69,778 $ 467,1 78 

-41 -



Other long-term debt - Liabi l it ies for claims and judgments, other post-employment benefits and landf i l l  closure 
and postclosure costs are l iquidated through future budgetary appropriations in the General Fund. The 
l iabil ities for compensated absences and due to Employees' Retirement System are l iquidated through future 
budgetary appropriation in the funds that gave rise to l iabi l ity, with the majority being l iquidated through the 
General and Police Funds. 

Mortgage payab le - The Housing Authority received a mortgage through Bridgehampton National Bank for 
$1 ,800,000 (30 years) which is secu red by the apartment com plex, payable in monthly instal lments of 
$1 0,792 and guaranteed by the Town of Southampton. I nterest is calculated at 6.000/0 and the mortgage 
matu res on August 23, 2035. The outstand ing balance as of December 31 , 2008 is $1 ,720,871 . 

The Housing Authority assumed and adjusted the exist ing mortgage through the USDA in  the amount of 
$1 ,332,038 which is secured by the apartment com plex and payable in month ly i nstal lments of $6,407. 
I nterest is calculated at 5.380/0 with a subsidy credit of $3,581 and the mortgage bal loons in 2035 with 
approxim ately $941 ,039 remain ing. The outstanding balance as of December 31 , 2008 is $ 1 ,31 3,31 0. 

The fol lowing is a summary of maturing debt service requ i rements: 

Primary governmental activities: 
Principal I nterest Total 

Year ended 
December 31 , 

2009 $ 33,436 $ 1 29,975 $ 1 63,41 1 
201 0  35,456 1 27,955 1 63,41 1 
201 1 37,598 1 25,81 3 1 63,4 1 1 
201 2  39,869 1 23,542 1 63,4 1 1 
201 3  42,278 1 21 , 1 33 1 63,4 1 1 

201 4-201 8 252,955 564,099 81 7,054 
201 9-2023 339,254 477,801 81 7,055 
2024-2028 455,059 361 ,995 81 7,054 
2029-2033 61 0,482 206,573 81 7,055 
2034-2035 1 21 87J94 252598 1 22 1 32392 

$ 3 034 1 81 $ 2.264.484 $ 5 298 665 

1 0. PENSION PLANS 

The Town of Southampton participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System 
(NYSERS) and the New York State Local Pol ice and Fire Retirement System (NYSPFRS) (collectively the 
"Systems") . These are cost-sharing, mUltiple-employer publ ic employee reti rement systems. The Systems 
offer a wide range of plans and benefits, which are related to years of service and final average salary, vesting 
of reti rement benefits, death and d isabi l ity. 

The NYSERS provides retirement benefits as wel l  as death and disabi l ity benefits. New York State 
Retirement and Social Security Law ("NYSRSSL") governs obligations of employers and employees to 
contribute, and benefits to employees. The NYSERS issues a publ icly avai lable f inancial report that includes 
f inancial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to 
NYSERS, Governor Alfred E. Smith State Office Bui ld ing, Albany, New York 1 2244. 

The systems are noncontributory except for employees who joined the New York State and Local Employees' 
Reti rement System after Ju ly 27, 1 976 and who have less than ten years of membership and less than ten 
years of credited service with a retirement system under the provisions of article fou rteen or fifteen of the 
NYSRSSL, who contribute 3% of their salary. Prior to October 1 ,  2000, all employees who joined the System 
after Ju ly 27, 1 976 were required to contribute 3% of their salary. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the 
Comptrol ler shall certify annually the rates expressed as proportions of payrol l  of members, which shall be 
used in computing the contributions requ i red to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund. 
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The Town is requ i red to contribute at a rate determ ined actuaria l ly by the Systems.  The Town 
contributions made to the System s  were equal to 1 00% of the contributions requ i red for each year and 
also inc lude addit ional contributions to fund various early ret i rement incentives m ade avai lable to the Town 
employees. The credits and m iscel laneous adjustments represent m od ifications made by the ERS and 
PFRS for prior year's contributions. Requ i red contributions for the cu rrent and two precedi ng years were: 

E RS PFRS 
Annual I ncentive/ Reconciliation and Annual Reconciliation and 

Year Required Rate Miscellaneous Required Miscellaneous Total 
End ed Contributions Amortization Adjustments Contribution Adjustments Payment 

2008 $ 2,000,852 $ - $ 48,351 $ 1 ,735,897 $ (81 ,779) $ 3,703,321 
2007 $ 2,027,861 $ 26,364 $ (1 2,394) $ 1 ,789,581 $ (56,266) $ 3,775, 1 46 
2006 $ 2, 1 28, 1 89 $ 26,364 $ (41 ,021 ) $ 1 ,835,690 $ 1 47,570 $ 4,096,792 

The State Legislature allows local governments to amortize certain contribution costs. The cost of the 
amortization is bi l led and paid over five year period and includes an interest rate of 8.00%. The total principal 
payments payable by the Town are as follows: 

Year ended 
December 31 , 

2009 
201 0 

$ 24,530 
5,486 

$ 30 01 6 

1 1 .  LENGTH OF SERVICE AWAR D PROGRAM ("LOSAP OR PROGRAM") 

Program Description 

The Town of Southam pton sponsors four Volunteer Am bulance Workers Service Award Programs (the 
"Plans") : Westham pton War Memorial Am bulance Corp, Flanders Northampton Ambulance Corp, 
Hampton Bays Ambu lance Corp and Southampton Volunteer Ambu lance Corp. All plans are s ing le­
employer defined benefit p lans covering the Town's volunteer ambulance workers. 

Funding Pol icy 

The Plans are establ ished under New York State Law Section 565-B, A7635-B, Article 1 1  AAA. The Plans are 
non-contributory. The Town is required to contribute the total amount sufficient to cover the normal cost of the 
plans. 

Participation, vesting and service cred it 

Any volunteer ambulance worker who completed five years of service and attains age 65 is el igible for normal 
reti rement benefits. Participants acquire a nonforfeitable right to a service award after being credited with 5 
years of ambulatory service or upon attaining the program's entitlement age. I n  general, an active volunteer 
ambulance worker is credited with a year of ambulatory service for each calendar year after the establ ishment 
of the program in which he or she accumulates fifty points. Points are granted for the performance of certain 
activities in accordance with a system establ ished by the sponsor on the basis of a statutory l ist of activities 
and point values. A participant may also receive credit for 5 years of service rendered prior to the 
establishment of the program. 

Benefits 

A participant's benefit under the program is the actuarial equivalent of a month ly payment for l ife equal to $20 
multiplied by the person's total number of years of ambulatory service. The number of years of ambulatory 
service used to compute the benefit cannot exceed forty. Except in the case of disabi l ity or death, benefits are 
payable when a participant reaches entitlement age. The program provides statutori ly m andated death and 
disabil ity benefits. 
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Fiduciary investment and control 

Service credit is determined by the governing board of the sponsor, based on i nformation certified to the 
govern ing board by each ambulance company having members who participate in  the program . Each 
ambulance company must maintain all requ i red records on forms prescribed by the governing board . 

The Plans are adm inistered by Penflex, I nc.  with al l  provisions and amendments subject to approval of the 
Town Board . An annual actuarial valuation report for the plans can be obtained from the Town of 
Southampton Comptrol ler's Office. None of the pension plans issue separate audited reports on the 
pension plans. The designated program adm inistrator's functions include I nstal lation Assistance includ ing:  
Specimen Adoption Agreement; Specimen Master P lan;  I nsurance Appl ications; Participant Enro l lment 
Forms; Explanation of Benef its; Benefit Certif icates and Adm inistrative Assistance: Reminder letter to 
sponsor with Census for cu rrent anniversary date provided annual ly; Participant's benefit calcu lation at the 
time of term ination or ret i rement for verif ication by the Plan Sponsor; Member Census and Prem ium 
Analysis Report provided annual ly; Valuation and recommended deposit provided annual ly; Summary of 
requ i red contribution ;  Actuarial review; and Recommended Program enhancement as appropriate. 
Disbursements of program assets for the payment of benef its or adm inistrative expenses m ust be 
approved.  The fol lowing is an explanation of the process for approving disbursements : 

A. Payment of benefits 

1 .  E ntitlement benef its 

Penflex, I nc. prepares and submits to the Sponsor a Verification of Benefits Statement and an 
Annu ity Enrol lment Form for participants active at entit lement age and for vested participants 
upon term ination from the Program . Fol lowing review for accuracy, the Sponsor signs and 
retu rns the paperwork to Penflex, Inc. authorizing Penflex, I nc.  to disburse entitlement benefits. 

2. Death benefits 

U pon notif ication from the Sponsor of a participant death,  Penf lex prepares a Verif ication of 
Benef its Statement and a Lump Sum Death Benefit Form . Fol lowing review for accuracy, the 
Sponsor signs and returns the paperwork accompanied by a death certificate to Penflex, I nc. 
authorizing Penflex, I nc. to disburse a death benefit. 

3. D isabi l ity benefits 

U pon not if ication from the Sponsor of a part icipant total and permanent d isabi l ity, Penflex, I nc. 
p repares a Verification of Benefits Statement, a Physician Statement Form and a Lum p  Sum 
Disabi l ity Benef it Form . Fol lowing review for accu racy, the Sponsor s igns and returns the 
paperwork authoriz ing Penflex, I nc. to d isburse a d isab i l ity benefit. 

B. Payment of administrative expenses 

Per the executed Service Fee Agreement, the Sponsor agrees to payment as cont racted .  

Program assets are requ i red to  be  held in  trust by LOSAP legislation, for the exclusive purpose of 
p rovid ing benefits to participants and thei r beneficiaries or for the pu rpose of defraying the reasonable 
expenses of the operation and administration of the p rogram . Program assets are held in  compl iance 
with G M L  Article 1 1  A 2 1 7(j ) .  

Authority to invest program assets is vested i n  the  G len Fal ls Bank and  Trust Company. Subject to 
restrictions in the program document, program assets are invested in accordance with a statutory 
"prudent person" ru le. 

The Sponsor is requ i red to retain an actuary to determ ine the amount of the Sponsor's contributions to 
the plan.  The actuary retained by the Sponsor for this pu rpose is Penflex, I nc. Portions of the 
fol lowing i nformation are derived from a report prepared by the actuary dated J une 1 6, 2009. 
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Plan contributions 

Pension contributions are determ ined based on an annual actuarial calculation. The required contribution for 
the Plans consists of two components. The fi rst component is the annual prior service cost which equals the 
level annual payment requ i red to fund over the prior service funding period and the portion of the current 
participants' projected benefits at entitlement age which is based on the service credit ambulance workers 
earned before the effective date of the Service Award Program . The second component is the "normal cost," 
which is equal to the level annual payment requ i red to fund the portion of the current participants' projected 
benefits based on their service credit earned after the effective date of the Service Award program . Based 
upon accepted actuarial methods and the assumptions used, it has been determined that the contributions for 
the Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corporation of $51 ,822, the Flanders Northampton Volunteer 
Ambulance Corporation of $76,287, the Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corporation of $54,081 and the 
Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation of $47,707 for the year ended December 31 , 2008 was 
sufficient to satisfy cu rrent and future service award obligations upon el igibi l ity for retirement. 

Program financial cond ition 

Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corporation -

Actuarial present value of vested benefits 

Net assets avai lable for benefit 

Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Actuarial present value of vested benefits 

Net assets available for benefit 

Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Actuarial present value of vested benefits 

Net assets available for benefit 

Southampton Volunteer Ambu lance Corporation -

Actuarial present value of vested benefits 

Net assets available for benefit 

Receipts and d isbursements 

Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginn ing of year 

Changes during the year: 
Plan contributions 
I nvestment income earned 
Trustee fees 
Adm inistrative fees 

Program net assets, end of year 
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$ 1 31 877 

$ 1 65 021 

$ 1 8 851 

$ 1 97.098 

$ 98 720 

$ 1 85 894 

$ 88 71 1 

$ 1 56 489 

$ 1 84,756 

$ 47,526 
(63,629) 

( 1 ,068) 
(2,564) (1 9,735) 

$ 1 65,021 



Contributions -

Amount of sponsor's contr ibution recommended by actuary $ 51 ,822 

Amount of sponsor's actual contribution $ 47 526 

Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginn ing of year $ 2 1 5,998 

Changes during the year: 
Plan contributions $ 60,7 1 0 
I nvestment income earned (75,749) 
Trustee fees ( 1 ,261 ) 
Adm inistrative fees (2,600) (1 8,900) 

Program net assets , end of year $ 1 97,098 

Contr ibutions -

Amount of sponsor's contr ibution recommended by actuary $ 76,287 

Amount of sponsor's actual contribution $ 60 71 0 

Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginn ing of year $ 1 97,746 

Changes during the year: 
Plan contributions $ 62,042 
I nvestment i ncome earned (70,057) 
Trustee fees ( 1 ,093) 
Adm inistrative fees (2,744) (1 1 ,852) 

Program net assets, end of year $ 1 85,894 

Contr ibutions -

Amount of sponsor's contr ibution recommended by actuary $ 54 081 

Amount of sponsor's  actual contribution $ 62 042 

Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginn ing of year $ 1 76 ,662 

C hanges during the year: 
Plan contributions $ 43,094 
I nvestment i ncome earned (59,705) 
Trustee fees (962) 
Adm inistrative fees (2,600) (20,1 73) 

Program net assets, end of year $ 1 56 489 

Contributions -

Amount of sponsor's contr ibution recommended by actuary $ 47,707 

Amount of sponsor's actual contribution $ 43,094 
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Funding methodology and actuarial assumptions 

Westhampton War Memorial Ambu lance Corporation -

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Pre-Entitlement age mortal ity table 
Post-entitlement age mortal ity table 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
I nvestment Rate of Return 

December 31 , 2008 
Attained Age Normal Frozen In itial Liabi l ity Cost Method 
Level Dol lar, open 
None assumed 
50/50 blend 1 994 US Uninsured Pensioner Mortality 
-0- Years 
Fai r  Market Value 

Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambu lance Corporation -

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Pre-Entitlement age mortality table 
Post-entit lement age mortal ity table 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

I nvestment Rate of Return 

December 31 , 2008 
Attained Age Normal Frozen In itial Liabil ity Cost Method 
Level Dollar, open 
None assumed 
50/50 blend 1 994 US Uninsured Pensioner Mortal ity 
-0- Years 
Fair Market Value 

6.5% 

Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Pre-Entitlement age mortal ity table 
Post-entit lement age mortal ity table 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

I nvestment Rate of Return 

Decem ber 31 , 2008 
Attained Age Normal Frozen I nitial Liabi l ity Cost Method 
Level Dol lar, open 
None assumed 
50/50 blend 1 994 US U ninsured Pensioner Mortal ity 
-0- Years 
Fai r  Market Value 

6.5% 

Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Pre-Entitlement age mortality table 
Post-entitlement age mortal ity table 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

I nvestment Rate of Return 

1 2. POST-EMPLOYM ENT BENEFITS 

Plan description and annual OPEB cost 

Decem ber 31 , 2008 
Attained Age Normal Frozen I nitial Liabi l ity Cost Method 
Level Dol lar, open 
None assumed 
50/50 blend 1 994 US Uninsured Pensioner Mortality 
-0- Years 
Fair  Market Value 

6.5% 

The Town provides post-em ployment (health i nsurance, l ife insu rance etc.) coverage to ret i red em ployees 
and their survivors in accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts. The benefit levels, 
employee contr ibut ions and employer contributions are governed by the Town's contractual agreements. 
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The Town implemented GASB Statement 45, Account ing and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post­
Employment Benefits Other than Pensions, i n  the year ended December 31 , 2008. This requ i red the 
Town to calcu late and record a net other post-employment benefit obl igat ion at year-end. The net other 
post-employment benefit obl igation is basica l ly the cumulative d ifference between the actuaria l ly requ i red 
contribution and the actual contributions made. 

Currently, 253 reti red em ployees receive health benefits from the Town. Ret i rees contribute 0% to 20% 
for coverage depending on position held,  date of h i re, years of service, and f iscal year  of ret irement. 

The Town recogn izes the cost of provid ing health i nsurance annual ly as expenditures in the appl icable 
funds of the funds financial statements as payments are made. For the year ended December 31 , 2008, 
the Town recognized $2,272 ,750 for its share of insu rance premiums for cu rrently enrol led ret i rees. 

The Town has obtained an actuarial valuation report as of January 1 ,  2008 which indicates that the total 
l iabi l ity for other post-employment benef its is $1 36,666,500 ($62,207 , 1 00 related to reti rees and 
$74,459,400 related to employees) . 

The Town's annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) for its plan is calcu lated based 
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarial ly determ ined i n  
accordance with the  parameters of GASB Statement 45 .  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if 
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded 
l iabi l ities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The fol lowing table shows the 
components of the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actual ly contributed to the plan, 
and changes i n  the District's net OPEB obl igation : 

Annual requ i red contribution 
I nterest on net OPEB obl igation 

Annual OPEB cost 
Contributions made 

I ncrease in  net OPEB obl igation 
Net OPEB obl igation - beginni ng of year 

Net OPEB obl igat ion - end of year 

$ 

$ 

For the 
Year Ended 

December 31 , 
2009 

1 0 ,879,200 
435,1 68 

1 1 ,31 4,368 
2,272,750 

9,04 1 ,61 8 

9,04 1 ,61 8 

The Town's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPEB obl igation were as fol lows: 

Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost 

1 2/31 /08 $1 1 ,31 4 ,368 
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Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Cost 

Contributed 

20. 1 %  

Net OPES 
Obl igation 

$9,04 1 ,61 8 



Funded status and funding progress 

As of January 1 ,  2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded . The actuarial 
accrued l iab i l ity for benefits was $1 36,666,500 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resu lt ing in  an 
unfunded actuarial accrued l iabi l ity (UAAL) of $1 36,666,500. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan 
i nvolve est imates of the value of reported amounts and assum ptions about the probabi l ity of occurrence of 
events far i nto the futu re. Examples include assumptions about futu re employment, mortal ity, and the 
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determ ined regard ing the funded status of the plan and the annual 
requ i red contributions of the employer are subject to cont inual revision as actual resu lts are compared with 
past expectations and new est imates are made about the futu re .  The schedule of funding progress, 
presented as requ i red supplementary information fol lowing the notes to the financial statements, presents 
m u ltiyear trend i nformation about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is i ncreasing or decreasing 
over t ime relative to the actuarial accrued l iabi l it ies for benefits. 

Actuarial methods and assumptions 

Projections of benef its for f inancial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and inc lude the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and  the  historical pattern o f  sharing o f  benefit costs between the employer and  plan 
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volati l ity in actuarial accrued l iab i l it ies and the actuarial value 
of  assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calcu lations. 

In the January 1 ,  2008 actuarial valuation, the projected un it actuarial cost method was used. The 
actuarial assumptions i nc luded a 4% investment rate of return (net of adm inistrative expenses) , which is a 
blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own 
investments calcu lated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual 
healthcare cost t rend rate of 1 0 .5% in it ia l ly, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after 6 years. 
Both rates i nc luded a 5 .5% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was determ ined using 
techniques that spread the effects of short-term volat i l ity in  the market value of investments over a 30 year 
period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrol l  on an open basis. The 
remain ing amortization period at December 31 , 2008 was 29 years. 

1 3. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Town employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn compensatory absences in  varying amounts. 
I n  the event of term ination or upon retirement, an employee is entitled to payment for accumulated vacation, 
and sick leave, subject to certain l im itations. 

Estimated vacation, sick leave and compensatory absences accum ulated by governmental fund type 
employees have been recorded in the statements of net assets. Payment of vacation time and sick leave is 
dependent upon many factors; therefore, tim ing of futu re payments is not readi ly determ inable. However, 
management bel ieves that sufficient resources wi l l  be made avai lable for the payments of vacation, sick leave 
and compensatory absences when such payments become due. As of December 31 , 2008 the value of the 
accumulated vacation time and sick leave for governmental and business-type activities was $1 0,21 8,771 . 

1 4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

A. Risk management 

The Town has adopted GASB Statement No. 1 0 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing 
and Related I nsurance Issues. The Statement establ ishes standards for risk financing and insurance­
related activities. Liabi l ities for unpaid claims are accrued when it is probable that a loss has been 
incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

I n  common with other m unicipal it ies, the Town receives numerous notices of claims.  The Town 
carries base general l iabi l ity i nsurance coverage of $1 ,000,000 per occurrence with a $2, 000,000 
annual aggregate . The Town carries an umbrella pol icy which provides additional insurance coverage 
of $ 1 0,000,000 per occurrence with a $20,000,000 annual aggregate. Although the eventual outcome 
of these claim s  cannot presently be determ ined, the Town is of the opinion that the u lt imate sett lement 
of the outstanding cla ims wi l l  not resu lt i n  a material adverse effect on the Town's f inancial position.  
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The Town is completely covered for workers' compensation insurance and d isabi l ity insurance. 

There have been no significant reductions in  insurance coverage as compared to the prior year, and there 
were no settlements in excess of insurance coverage over the last three years. 

The Town estimates general l iabi l ity reserves by consulting with legal counsel and past experience with 
sim i lar claims. The Town has not purchased any annuity contracts with regard to its general l iabil ity 
claims. The schedu le below presents the changes in claims l iabi l ities for the past two years and includes 
an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. 

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenditu res at the 
beginning of the year 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment 
Expenditu res: 

Provision for insured events of the current year and 
increases in  provision for insured events of prior years 

Total incurred claims and adjustment expenditu res 

Payments: 
Claims and claim adjustment expenditu res attributable to 

insured events of the current and prior years 

Total payments 

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenditu res at the 
end of the year 

B. Litigation 

General Liabi l ity 

2008 

$ 71 3,938 

1 50,086 

1 50,086 

$ 563 852 

2007 

$ 1 ,061 ,000 

53,678 

53,678 

400,740 

400,740 

$ 71 3 938 

The Town is a defendant in various lawsu its . Based on the opin ion of outside counsel ,  the Town has 
a meritorious defense in these suits, although the outcome is u ncertain .  The Town has determ ined 
that resolut ion of these matters wi l l  not have a material adverse effect on the f inancial condition of the 
Town. 

The Shinnecock Tribe has brought an action against the Town of Southampton. Although the Town 
has been advised that they have a meritorious defense and expect to prevai l ,  at this point the 
outcom e is  u ncerta in .  The action has been d ismissed in  its enti rety; however the courts determ ination 
is the subject of a motion for reconsideration and l i kely wi l l  be the subject of an appeal by the 
Shinnecock Tribe. 

C .  Landfi l l  closure and post-closure care costs 

State and federal laws and regu lations requ i re the Town to place a f inal cover on landf i l l  s ites and to 
perform certain maintenance and monitoring activities at landf i l l  sites for at least th i rty years after 
closu re. The North Sea Landfi l l  site stopped receiving waste in 1 995. As of Decem ber 31 , 2008, the 
Town has recorded a l iab i l ity of $3,753, 1 69,  wh ich represents the provision to be made in  future 
budgets for unfunded postclosu re landf i l l  monitori ng and maintenance costs. Actual costs m ay vary 
due to i nf lation or deflation , changes in technology or changes in regu lations or appl icable laws. 

D. Government grants 

The Town has received g rants, which are subject to audit by agencies of the State and federal 
governments. Such audits may result in  d isal lowances and a request for a retu rn of funds. Based on 
prior years' experience, the Town's adm inistration bel ieves d isal lowances, if any, wou ld be immateria l .  
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E .  Lease commitments and leased assets 

Operating leases 

The Town is comm itted under a noncancelable operating lease for the Hampton Bays Town Center. 
Total rental expenditu res on the lease for the year ended December 31 , 2008 totaled approximately 
$299,000. 

Future m in imum operating lease comm itments are as fol lows: 

1 5. 20/0 TRANSFER TAX 

Year ended 
Decem ber 31 , 

2009 
201 0 
201 1 
201 2  
201 3  

201 4-201 8 
201 9-2023 

$ 31 0,500 
31 0 ,500 
31 0,500 
3 1 0,500 
336,375 

1 ,775,672 
1 ,702,899 

$ 5 056 946 

I n  November 1 998, the voters of the Town of Southampton approved a referendum for a 2% Transfer Tax, 
which became effective on Apri l 1 ,  1 999. The transfer tax receipts are recorded in the Community 
Preservation and Park Districts Fund, and are used for the purchase and/or preservation of agricultu ral land, 
open space, parks or historic preservation sites. The tax appl ies to sales of vacant land worth $1 00,000 or 
more or sales of improved land worth $250,000 or more. Conveyance of real property for open space, parks 
or historic preservation purposes are exempt from this tax. 

At December 31 , 2008, and for the four previous years, the Town has the following 2% transfer tax revenue 
and expenses associated with environmental or historic preservation purposes of: 

Revenues Expenses 
Year ended 

December 31 2 
2008 $ 33,948,760 $ 80,636,665 
2007 53,987, 1 96 68,385,61 3 
2006 51 ,297,562 38, 1 25,582 
2005 51 ,607,369 36,01 8,887 
2004 42,935,382 28,71 3,345 

1 6. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS FOR THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

The fol lowing represents condensed financial statements for the Town of Southampton Housing Authority, a 
discretely presented component unit, as of and for the year ended Decem ber 31 , 2008: 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets: 

Assets and Other Debits 

T own of Southam pton 

Current 
Assets 

Capital 
Assets 
Net of 

Depreciation 
Non-current 

Assets 

Housing Authority $ 252,795 $3, 1 33,859 $ 28,682 

-5 1 -

Current 
Liabi l ities 

Liabi l it ies 
Bonds and 

Other 
Long-Term 
Liabi l it ies 

Net 
Assets 

$ 74,026 $3,000,745 $ 340,565 



Condensed Statement of Activities: 

Expenses 

Town of Southam pton 

Program 

Revenue 
Net 

Revenues Change 
Net 

Assets 

Housing Authority $ 51 3,708 $ 480,31 7 $ (33,391 ) $295 , 1 48 $ 261 ,757 $ 340,565 

1 7. SUBSEQU ENT EVENTS 

The Town has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the Statement of Net Assets through the date 
of December 22, 2009 which is the date the f inancial statements were avai lable to be issued . 

1 8. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEM ENTS NOT YET IMPLEM ENTED 

GASB has issued Statement 52, Land and Other Real Estate H eld as I nvestment by Endowments , which 
establ ishes consistent standards for the report ing of land and other real estate held as investments by 
essentia l ly s im i lar entities. The Town is currently studying the statement and p lans on adoption if and 
when requ i red, which wi l l  be for the December 31 , 2009 f inancial statements. 

GASB has issued Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Defin it ions, which 
enhances the usefu lness of fund balance i nformation by providing clearer fund balance classifications that 
can be more consistently appl ied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type def in it ions. The 
Town is cu rrently studying the statement and plans on adoption if and when requ i red, which wi l l  be for the 
Decem ber 31 , 20 1 1 f inancial statements. 

GASB has issued Statement 55, The H ierarchy of General ly Accepted Account ing Principles for State and 
Local Governments, which wi l l  improve financial reporti ng by codifying al l  general ly accepted account ing 
principles for state and local governments so that they derive from a single source. The Town is currently 
studying the statement and plans on adoption if and when requ i red , which wi l l  be for the December 31 , 
2009 financial statements. 

GASB has issued Statement 56, Codif ication of Accounting and Financial Report ing Guidance Contained 
in  the AIC PA Statements on Auditi ng Standards, wh ich wi l l  improve f inancial reporting by codifying al l  
general ly accepted accounting principles for state and local governments so that they derive from a single 
source. The Town is currently studying the statement and p lans on adoption if and when requ i red,  which 
wi l l  be for the December 31 , 2009 f inancial statements. 

1 9. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

Governmental Funds fund balance, Enterprise Funds net assets and Governmental Activities net assets 
have been restated as of January 1 ,  2008, to g ive effect to the fol lowing : 

Governmental Funds Enterprise Funds Town-wide 
Fund Balance Net Assets Net Assets 

Balance as of January 1 ,  2008, as reported $ 64,079,602 $ 1 7 ,973, 1 1 6  $ 596,645,397 

Add ( less) : real location of certain health costs 44,052 (44,052) 44,052 

Add :  write-off of u nsupportab le accounts payable 398,263 25,482 398,263 

Less: recognit ion of prior year l iabi l ity (1 ,875, 1 75) 420 (1 ,875,1 75) 

Balance as of January 1 ,  2008, as restated $ 62 646,742 $ 1 7,954,966 $ 595,2 1 2 537 

The effect of the restatement on the change in net assets for f iscal 2007 is not reasonably determ inable. 
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SUPPLEMENTAL 
SCHEDULE 1 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES1 EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 311 2008 

Original Revised 
Budget Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Real property taxes $ 1 9 ,253,2 1 1 $ 1 9 , 1 78,21 1 $ 1 9, 1 83,481 
Other real property tax items 555,000 555 ,000 274,837 
Non-property tax items 825,000 859,250 1 ,01 0,521 
Departmental income 483,624 463,624 241 , 1 48 
I ntergovernmental charges 41 ,000 41 ,000 1 2, 1 29 
Use of money and property 1 ,01 8,800 1 ,044,346 533,927 
Licenses and permits 1 03,000 1 03,000 1 09,541 
Fines and forfeitures 1 ,300,000 1 ,300,000 1 ,668,459 
Sale of property and compensation for loss 1 6,000 1 6,000 28,875 
Miscel laneous local sources 474,500 478,500 380,971 
State aid 9,295,649 9 ,339,42 1 9,02 1 , 1 96 

Total revenues 33,365,784 33,378,352 32,905 , 1 56 

EXPENDITURES 
General government su pport 1 2 ,941 ,658 1 3,952,540 1 3,940,5 1 9  
Publ ic safety 2 ,779,91 1 2 ,808,854 2,601 ,2 1 9  
Health 30,250 29,250 26,749 
Transportation 499,752 521 ,483 494, 1 83 
Economic assistance and opportunity 1 ,81 3,326 1 ,9 1 4,049 1 ,834,2 1 9  
Culture and recreation 4,393,325 4,463,88 1  4,32 1 ,927 
Home and com munity services 91 1 ,31 6 1 ,563,907 1 ,354,634 
Employee benefits 6 , 1 72,279 5 ,903,01 6 5 ,71 1 ,665 

Total expenditures 29,541 , 8 17  31 , 1 56,980 30,285 , 1 1 5  

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 3 ,823,967 2,221 ,372 2,620,041 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 851 ,496 1 ,553,209 
Transfers out {5 ,559,908} {1 0,668,898} {8,070,538} 

Total other financing sou rces (uses) {5 ,559,908} {9,81 7,402} {6,5 1 7,329} 

Changes in fund equity ( 1 ,735 ,941 ) (7,596,030) (3,897,288) 

Fund equity, beginn ing of year, as restated 1 4,472,522 1 4,472 ,522 1 4,472,522 

Fund eq uity, end of year $ 1 2,736,581 $ 6,876.492 $ 1 0,575234 

The accompanying notes to financial statements should 
be read in  conjunction with this schedule.  
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Variances 
Year-end Favorable 

Encumbrances {Unfavorable} 

$ 5,270 
(280 , 1 63) 
1 5 1 ,271 

(222,476) 
(28,871 ) 

(5 1 0,41 9) 
6,541 

368,459 
1 2,875 

(97,529) 
{31 8,225} 

{473, 1 96} 

$ 1 1 1 ,946 (99,925) 
207,635 

2,501 
7 ,574 1 9,726 

79,830 
1 41 ,954 
209,273 
1 91 ,351 

1 1 9 ,520 752,345 

( 1 1 9 ,520) 279, 1 49 

701 ,7 1 3  
2,598,360 

3,300,073 

� (1 1 9,520) � 3,579,222 



SUPPLEMENTAL 
SCHEDULE 2 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
TOWN OUTSIDE VILLAGE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES2 EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 312 2008 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

REVENU ES 
Real property taxes $ 291 ,91 4 $ 290,31 4 $ 290,31 4 
Other real property tax items 1 ,059 
Use of money and property 75,000 75,000 1 9,541 

Total revenues 366,91 4 365,31 4 3 1 0, 9 14  

EXPENDITURES 
Publ ic safety 583,61 6 340, 1 26 339,71 7 
Home and com munity services 762,071 740,9 1 5  733,647 
Employee benefits 271 ,227 223,21 7 1 69,291 

Total expenditures 1 ,61 6,91 4 1 ,304,258 1 ,242,655 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures ( 1 ,250,000) (938,944) (931 ,741 ) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers i n  884,946 1 ,934 
Transfers out {251 ,200} P,341} 

Total other financing sou rces (uses) 633,746 {1 ,407} 

Changes i n  fund equity ( 1 ,250,000) (305 , 1 98) (933, 1 48) 

Fu nd equity, beginn ing of year, as restated 1 ,775,902 1 ,775,902 1 ,775,902 

Fund equity, end of year $ 525,902 � 1 ,470,704 � 842,754 

The accom panying notes to financial statements should 
be read i n  conjunction with this schedule.  
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Variances 
Year-end Favorable 

Encumbrances {U nfavorable} 

$ 
1 ,059 

{55,459} 

{54,400} 

$ 1 1 1 ,531 ( 1 1 1 , 1 22) 
7,268 

53,926 

1 1 1 ,531 {49,928} 

( 1 1 1 ,531 ) ( 1 04,328) 

(883,01 2) 
247,859 

{635, 1 53} 

� (1 1 1 ,531) � (739,481) 



SUPPLEMENTAL 
SCH EDULE 3 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
HIGHWAY FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUESl EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY {DEFICIT} 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31l 2008 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

REVEN U ES 
Real property taxes $ 7,833,202 $ 7,833,202 $ 7,832,960 
Other real property tax items 30,000 30,000 32,001 
I ntergovernmental charges 634,903 634,903 634,903 
Use of money and property 70,000 70,000 52,755 
Miscel laneous local sources 508,500 482,074 45,299 
State aid 560,000 655,373 657,91 8 

Total revenues 9,636,605 9,705,552 9,255,836 

EXPENDITURES 
Transportation 5,796, 1 47 5,71 1 ,040 5,749,302 
Employee benefits 1 ,824,022 1 ,824,022 1 ,229,940 

Total expenditures 7,620, 1 69 7,535,062 6,979,242 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 2,01 6,436 2 , 1 70,490 2 ,276,594 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other fi nancing sou rces (uses) 

Changes in fund equity 

Fund equity (deficit) , beginn ing of year 

Fund eq uity (deficit) , end of year 

250,000 355,000 351 , 1 27 
{1 ,81 6,435} {1,957,549} {2, 1 44,529} 

{1 ,566,435} {1 ,602,549} {1 ,793,402} 

450,001 567,941 483, 1 92 

{505,794} {505,794} {505,794} 

$ (55,793} � 62,1 47 � (22,602} 

The accom panying notes to financial statements should 

be read in conjunction with this schedule .  
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Variances 
Year-end Favorable 

Encumbrances {Unfavorable} 

$ (242) 
2,001 

(1 7,245) 
(436,775) 

2 ,545 

{449,71 6} 

$ (38,262) 
594,082 

555,820 

1 06, 1 04 

(3,873) 
{1 86,980} 

{1 90,853} 

� � (84,749} 



SUPPLEMENTAL 
SCHEDULE 4 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
POLICE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES! EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY {DEFICIT} 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31! 2008 

Original Revised 
Budget Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Real property taxes $ 1 8 ,21 5,226 $ 1 8 ,21 5 ,226 $ 1 8,21 5,226 
Other real property tax items 50,000 50,000 68,952 
Departmental i ncome 1 59,000 254,000 235,01 6 
Use of money and property 205,000 205,000 1 01 ,760 
Sale of property and compensation for loss 500 
Miscel laneous local sources 25,000 25,000 34,393 
State aid 1 ,847,723 1 ,847,723 1 ,647,723 
Federal aid 37,000 37,000 46,023 

Total revenues 20,538,949 20,633,949 20,349,593 

EXPENDITURES 
Publ ic safety 1 4,595,656 1 4,575,927 1 3,584,41 1 
Employee benefits 5,873,923 5 ,977,547 5,31 9,097 

Total expenditures 20,469,579 20,553,474 1 8,903,508 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 69,370 80,475 1 ,446,085 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers i n  5, 1 35 
Transfers out {69,370} {69,370} p03,043} 

Total other fi nancing sou rces (uses) {69,370} {69,370} {97,908} 

Changes in fund equity 1 1 , 1 05 1 ,348, 1 77 

Fund equity (deficit ) ,  beginn ing of year, 
as restated {4,074,877} {4,074,877} {4,074,877} 

Fund equity (deficit) ,  end of year m (4,074,877} m (4,063.772} m (2,726,700} 

The accompanyi ng notes to f inancial statements should 

be read i n  conjunction with this schedule.  
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Variances 
Year-end Favorable 

Encumbrances {U nfavorable} 

$ 
1 8 ,952 

( 1 8 ,984) 
( 1 03,240) 

500 
9,393 

(200,000) 
9,023 

{284,356} 

$ 991 ,5 1 6  
658 ,450 

1 ,649,966 

1 ,365,61 0 

5 , 1 35 
{33,673} 

{28,538} 

m m 1 ,337,072 



Justice 
DeMa�o 

Cash balance, 

beginn ing of year $ 55 ,322 

Col lections: 

Traffic, cri m inal f ines, civi l  

and surcharge 593 ,966 
Parking fi nes 74,81 0 
Bai l 

Miscel laneous 

Total col l ections 668,776 

Disbursements :  

Town of Southam pton 687,033 
Return of bai l and other 

Miscel laneous 

Total disbursements 687,033 

Cash balance, 
end of year � 371065 

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
JUSTICE COURT 

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Town Justices 

Justice Justice Justice Bail 
Koo�erstein Wilson Burke Accounts 

$ 3 1 ,995 $ 63,367 $ $ 498, 1 89 

580, 668 686, 1 73 656, 624 
93,575 1 1 6,930 86, 8 1 0 

587,567 . 

674,243 803 , 1 03 743,434 587,567 

672, 1 99 804,690 692,42 1 

677, 067 

672, 1 99 804,690 692,42 1  677, 067 

� 341039 � 6 1 ?80 � 5 1 10 1 3  � 4081689 

The accompanying notes to f inancial statements should 
be read i n  conjunction with th is schedule .  

-57-

SUPPLEMENTAL 
SCHEDULE 5 

Special Parking 
Accounts Accounts Combined 

$ 4,242 $ 6,347 $ 659,462 

2 , 5 1 7,431 

44,01 7 41 6 , 1 42 

587,567 
2,363 41 6 2,779 

2,363 44,433 3,523,91 9 

2 ,856,343 
677,067 

1 ,705 3, 625 5 ,330 

1 ,705 3, 625 3, 538,740 

� 41900 � 471 1 55 � 6441641 



TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 

SUPPLEMENTAL 
SCHEDULE 6 

SCHEDULE OF EM PLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM 
DECEM BER 31 . 2008 

Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corp: 

Year Annual 
Ended Requ i red Actual 

Dec. 31 Contribution Contribution 

2008 $ 5 1 ,822 $ 47,526 

Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp: 

Year Annual 
Ended Requ i red Actual 

Dec. 31 Contribution Contribution 

2008 $ 76,287 $ 60,71 0 

Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corp: 

Year Annual 
Ended Requ i red Actual 

Dec. 31 Contribution Contribution 

2008 $ 54,08 1 $ 62,042 

Southampton Vol unteer Ambulance Corp: 

Year 
Ended 

Dec. 31 

2008 

Annual 
Requ i red Actual 

Contribution Contribution 

$ 47,707 $ 43,094 

The accompanying notes to financial statements should 
be read i n  conjunction with this schedu le. 

-58-

Percentage 
Contributed 

91 .71 % 

Percentage 
Contributed 

79.580/0 

Percentage 
Contributed 

1 1 4.72% 

Percentage 
Contributed 

90.33% 



TOWN O F  SOUTHAM PTON 

SUPPLEMENTAL 
SCHEDULE 7 

SCHEDULE O F  FUN DING PROGRESS - SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM 
DECEM B ER 31.  2008 

Westhampton War M emorial Ambulance Corp: 

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded 
Valuation Accrued Liabil ity (Overfunded) 

Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded 
Dec. 31 of Assets Age Liabil ity (UAAL) Ratio 

{a} {b} {b-a} {alb} 

2008 $ 1 65,021 $ 362,085 $ 1 97,064 45.58% 

Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp: 

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded 
Valuation Accrued Liabi l ity (Overfunded) 

Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded 
Dec. 3 1  o f  Assets Age Liabil ity (UAAL) Ratio 

{a} {b} {b-a} {alb} 

2008 $ 1 97,098 $ 406,926 $ 209,828 48.44% 

Hampton Bays Volu nteer Ambulance Corp: 

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded 
Valuation Accrued Liabil ity (Overfunded) 

Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded 
Dec. 31 of Assets Age Liabi l ity (UAAL) Ratio 

{a} {b} {b-a} {alb} 

2008 $ 1 85,894 $ 295,963 $ 1 1 0 ,069 62.81 % 

Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp: 

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded 
Valuation Accrued Liabi l ity (Overfunded) 

Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded 
Dec. 31 of Assets Age Liabil ity (UAAL) Ratio 

{a} {b} {b-a} {alb} 

2008 $ 1 56,489 $ 262, 1 1 1  $ 1 05 ,622 59.70% 

* There is no covered payroll due to the fact that this is a volunteer ambulance corp. 
Benefits are determined based off service credits earned. The amount of the monthly retirement 
income payable to a volunteer ambulance worker el igible for normal retirement benefits is equal 
to $20 multiplied by the total years of service, which is not to exceed 40 years. 

** Prior to 2007 all plans were defined contribution plans. 

The accompanying notes to financial statements should 
be read in  conjunction with this schedule. 
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UAAL as a 
% of 

Covered Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

{c} [{b-a}/c] 

N/A* N/A* 

UAAL as a 
% of 

Covered Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

{c} [{b-a}/c] 

N/A* N/A* 

UAAL as a 
% of 

Covered Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

{c} [{b-a}/c] 

N/A* N/A* 

UAAL as a 
% of 

Covered Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

{c} [{b-a}/c] 

N/A* N/A* 



Actuarial 

Valuation 

Date 

0 1 /0 1 /08 

SUPPLEM ENTAL 
SCH EDU LE 8 

TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE R ETIREE H EALTH PLAN 

FOR TH E YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31 , 2008 

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

(a) 

$ 

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liabi l ity U nfunded 

(AAL)- AAL Funded Covered 

Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payrol l  

(b) (b-a) (alb) ( c ) 

$ 1 36.666.500 $ 1 36.666.500 0 .00% $ 38.900. 1 27 

The accompanying notes to financial statements shou ld be 
read in  conjunction with this schedu le .  
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UAAL as a 

Percentage 

of Covered 

Payrol l  

((b-a)/c) 

351 .33% 



TOWN O F  SOUTHAM PTON 
SCH EDULE OF EXPEN DITU RES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2008 

Federal GrantorlPass-through 
Grantor/Program Title 

U .S Department of Housi ng and Urban Development 

Section 8 Housing Vouchers Program 

Passed - through Suffolk County 
Commun ity Development Block Grant 

U .S. Department of Health and H uman Services 

Passed - through Suffolk County 
Admin istration on Aging:  

Special P rog rams for the Ag ing - Title I I I  
Part C - Nutrit ion 
Adu lt Day Care 
Nutrit ion Services I ncentive Program 

U .S. Department of Transportation 

Passed - through Office of the New York State Comptrol ler 
H ighway Plann ing and Construction 
"STEP" U nsafe Driving 
Buckle Up  New York 

U.S. Department of J ustice 

Passed - through Office of the New York State Comptrol ler 
Byrne G rant 
Bu l letp roof Vest Partnersh ip 

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPEN DITU RES 
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Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

1 4 .871 

1 4 .2 1 8 

93.045 
93.052 
93.053 

20 .205 
20.600 
20.600 

1 6 .579 
1 6 .607 

SUPPLEM ENTAL 
SCH EDULE 9 

Total 
Federal 

Expenditures 

$ 3,435,3 1 8  

294,500 

383,839 
3,731 

36,948 

3,053 
2 1 ,896 
1 9 ,696 

1 2 ,500 
4,431 

$ 4 21 5 9 1 2  



TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
NOTES TO SCH EDULE OF EXPENDITU RES OF FEDERAL AWAR DS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2008 

1 .  Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedu le of Expenditu res of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal 
awards programs administered by the Town of Southampton (the ''Town'') , an entity as def ined in Note 
1 to the Town's f inancial statements. Federa l  awards received d i rectly from federal agencies, as wel l  
a s  federal awards passed through government agencies, are inc luded o n  the Schedu le of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards.  

2.  Basis of  Accounting 

The basis of accou nting varies by federal program consistent with the u nderlying regu lations 
pertain ing to each program.  

The amounts reported as federal expenditures general ly were obtained from appropriate federal 
fi nancial reports for the appl icable program and periods. The amounts reported in  these federal 
f inancial reports are prepared from records maintained for each program. These records are 
periodica l ly  reconci led to the general ledger which is the source of the f inancial statements. 

3. Indi rect Costs 

I nd i rect costs are included in the reported expenditu res to the extent they are i ncluded in the federal 
fi nancial reports used as the source for the data presented. 

4. Matching Costs 

Matching costs ( i .e. the Town's share of certain program costs) are not included in the reported 
expenditures . 

5. Major Program Determi nation 

The Town has determ ined that all Federal  programs with expenditu res of $300,000 or more are Type 
A Prog ram s  for purposes of determ in ing Major Programs. 
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Nawrocki Smith LLP 

C E RTI F IED PUBLIC ACCOU NTANTS 

I NDEPENDENT AU DITORS' R EPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COM PLIANCE 

AN D OTH ER MATTERS BASED ON AN AU DIT OF FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the H onorable Supervisor and Town Board of 
the Town of Southampton:  

We have aud ited the financial statements of the Town of Southampton (the "Town") as of and for the year 
ended December 31 , 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2009 which was qual if ied 
due to our inabi l ity to apply suff icient procedures to the Town's opening fund balances in  the General Fund 
and Capital Projects Fund and the open ing net assets in  the Enterprise Funds. Except as d iscussed i n  the 
preceding sentence, we conducted our  audit i n  accordance with aud it ing standards general ly accepted in  the 
Un ited States of America and the standards appl icable to f inancial audits contained i n  Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptrol ler General of the Un ited States. 

I nternal Control Over Financial Reporti ng 

I n  p lanning and perform ing our audit ,  we considered the Town of Southampton's internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our aud it ing procedures for the pu rpose of expressing our opinion on the 
fi nancial statements , but not for the purpose of expressing an op in ion on the effectiveness of the Town of 
Southam pton's internal control over f inancial reporti ng. Accord ingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town's internal control over f inancial reporting .  

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not al low management or 
employees, i n  the normal course of perform ing thei r assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on 
a t imely basis. A sign if icant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that 
adversely affects the organization's ab i l ity to in it iate, authorize , record, process, or report f inancial data re l iably 
i n  accordance with general ly accepted accounting principles, such that there is more than a remote l ikel ihood 
that a m isstatement of the organ ization's f inancial statements that is more than i nconsequential wi l l  not be 
prevented or detected by the organ ization 's internal control .  

A m aterial weakness is a signif icant deficiency, or combination of sign ificant deficiencies, that resu lts i n  more 
than a remote l ikel i hood that a m aterial m isstatement of the f inancial statements wi l l  not be prevented or 
detected by the organ ization's i nternal control .  

Our  consideration of internal control over f inancial reporting was for the l im ited purpose described in  the fi rst 
paragraph of this section and wou ld  not necessari ly identify al l  deficiencies in internal control that m ight be 
sign ificant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any def iciencies in internal control over 
f inancial reporting that we considered to be material weaknesses, as def ined above. 
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Nawrocki Smith LLP 

Compl iance And Other Matters 

As part of obta in ing reasonable assu rance about whether the Town of Southampton 's financial statements are 
free of material m isstatement, we performed tests of its compl iance with certa in provisions of laws, regu lations,  
contracts, and g rant agreements, noncompl iance with wh ich cou ld have a d i rect and material effect on the 
determ ination of fi nancial statement amounts . However, provid ing an opin ion on compl iance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our aud it, and accord ing ly, we do not express such an opin ion. The resu lts 
of our tests d isclosed two instances of noncompl iance that are requ i red to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards, which are described in section B of the accompanying schedu le of findings and 
questioned costs as items 08-0 1 and 08-02. 

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Town of Southampton in a separate 
letter dated December 22,  2009 . 

The report is intended solely for the information and use of the Supervisor, Town Board ,  management, others 
with in the Town and federal award ing agencies and pass-th rough entities and is not intended to be and shou ld 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Melvi l le ,  New York 
December 22, 2009 
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Nawrocki Smith LLP 

CE RTI F I E D  PUBLIC ACCOU NTANTS 

INDEPEN DENT AU DITORS' REPORT 
ON COM PLIANCE WITH REQU IREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO 

EACH MAJOR PROG RAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COM PLIANCE IN ACCOR DANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-1 33 

To the H onorable Supervisor and Town Board of 
the Town of Southampton : 

Compl iance 

We have aud ited the compl iance of the Town of Southampton with the types of compl iance requ i rements 
described in  the U .S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A- 1 33 Compliance Supplement that 
are appl icable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31 , 2008. The Town of 
Southampton's major federal program is identified in the summary of audit resu lts section of the accompanying 
schedu le of  f indings and questioned costs. Compl iance with the requ i rements of  laws, regu lations, contracts 
and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsib i l ity of the Town of Southampton's 
management. Our responsibi l ity is to express an opinion on the Town of Southampton's compl iance based on 
our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compl iance i n  accordance with aud it ing standards general ly accepted i n  the Un ited 
States of America; the standards appl icable to f inancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptrol ler General of the U nited States; and OMB Circular A- 1 33, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circu lar A- 1 33 requ i re that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompl iance with the types of 
compl iance requ i rements referred to above that could have a d i rect and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examin ing ,  on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Southampton's 
compliance with those requ i rements and perform ing such other procedu res as we considered necessary in  the 
c ircumstances. We bel ieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our  op in ion.  Our audit does not 
provide a legal determ ination of the Town of Southam pton's compl iance with those requ i rements. 

In our opin ion,  the Town of Southampton compl ied, in al l  material respects , with the requ i rements referred to 
above that are appl icable to its major federal programs for the year ended December 31 , 2008. 

I nternal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the Town of Southam pton is responsible for establ ishing and maintain ing effective 
i nternal control over compl iance with requ i rements of laws, regu lations, contracts and grants appl icable to 
federal programs. In p lanning and perform ing our audit ,  we considered the Town of Southam pton's i nternal 
control over compl iance with requ i rements that could have a d i rect and material effect on a m ajor federal 
program in order to determ ine our  aud it ing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compl iance but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compl iance. Accord ing ly, we do not express an opi n ion on the effectiveness of the Town of Southampton's 
i nternal control over compl iance. 
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Nawrocki Smith LLP 

A contro l deficiency in  an entity's internal contro l over compl iance exists when the desig n or operation of a 
control does not al low management or employees, in the normal cou rse of performing the i r  assigned functions, 
to prevent or detect noncompl iance with a type of compl iance requ i rement of a federal program on a t imely 
basis. A sign ificant defic iency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adverse ly 
affects the entity's abi l ity to adm in ister  a federal program such that there is more than a remote l ike l ihood that 
noncompl iance with a type of compl iance requ i rement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential 
wil l  not be prevented or detected by the entity 's internal contro l .  

A material weakness is a sign ificant deficiency ,  or combination of sign ificant deficiencies, that resu lts in more 
than a remote l ikel ihood that material noncompl iance with a type of compl iance requ i rement of a federal 
program wi l l  not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal contro l .  

Our consideration of internal control over compl iance was for the l im ited pu rpose described in the fi rst 
paragraph of this section and would not necessari ly identify a l l  deficiencies in internal control that m ight be 
sign ificant deficiencies or material weaknesses . We d id not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
com pliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Town of Southampton in a separate 
letter dated December 22,  2009 . 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Su pervisor, Town Board , management, others 
with in the Town and federal award ing agencies and pass-th rough entities and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Melvi l le ,  New York 
December 22, 2009 
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TOWN OF SOUTHAM PTON 
SCH EDULE OF FINDINGS AND QU ESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31 , 2008 

A. SUMMARY OF AU DIT RESULTS 

1 .  The auditors' report expresses a qual ified opinion on the financial statements. 
2 .  No significant def iciencies or material weaknesses were d isclosed during the audit of the f inancial 

statements. 
3. Two instances of noncompl iance were disclosed during the audit. 
4. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses were d isclosed during the audit of the major 

federal award program. 
5. The auditors' report on compl iance for the major federal awards program for the Town of 

Southampton expresses an unqual if ied opin ion. 
6 .  No audit f indings relative to the major federal award program that are requ i red to be reported in 

accordance with section 51 0(a) of OMS Circular A- 1 33, were disclosed during the audit. 
7. The program tested as a major program included: 

C FDA Number 

1 4 .871 

Name of Federal Program 

u .S. Department of Housing and U rban Deve lopment -
Section 8 Housing Vouchers Program 

8. The threshold for d istingu ishing Types A and S programs was $300,000. 
9.  Aud itee was determ ined not to be a low-risk auditee. 

B. FIN DINGS - FINANCIAL STATEM ENT AU DIT 

08-01 The Town may have expended bond monies on projects that were not covered i n  the bond 
issuance. 

Cond ition: The Town may not have compl ied with restrictions on bond covenants . 

Criteria: The bond agreement states that no monies shal l be expended for any other pu rpose than 
what was i ntended and communicated with in the official statement. 

Effect: The Town m ay not have com pl ied with bond covenants. 

Cause: The Town may have used bond m onies from capital projects to pay expenses for certain other 
capital projects. 

Recommendation: The Town shou ld imp lement pol icies and procedures to monitor capital project 
spending on a project/borrowing basis. 

Response: The Town has contracted a forensic accou nting f i rm to perform a forensic investigation of 
the Capital Projects Fund and assist the Town in evaluating the current status of its capital projects. 

08-02 The subm ission of the annual audited f inancial statements to the Single Audit Clearinghouse 
d id not occu r u nt i l  subsequent to the f i l ing deadl ine. 

Condit ion: The Town d id not fu lf i l l  i ts annual report ing requ i rement to the Sing le Aud it Clearinghouse 
in  accordance with the requ isite due date. 

Criteria: OMS C i rcu lar A-1 33 requ i res that the Town submit its annual audited financial statements 
with in n ine months after f iscal year end. 

Effect: The Town d id not fulf i l l  i ts federal audit reporti ng requ i rement as of the requ i red subm ission 
date. 
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Cause: I nformation necessary to c lose the books and records was not avai lable, therefore, the annual 
audited f inancial statements were not prepared on a t imely basis. 

Recommendation: The Town should im plement procedures to ensure sufficient t ime to comply with 
OMS C i rcu lar A- 1 33 reporti ng requ i rements. 

Response: The Town is in  agreement with this f inding and wi l l  ensure pol icies and procedures are i n  
effect to  comply with a l l  OMS Circular A- 1 33 requ i rements in  the future .  

C .  FINDINGS AN D QU ESTION ED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWAR D PROGRAM AU DIT 

None reported.  
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON 
SUM MARY SCH EDULE OF PRIOR AU DIT FIN DINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1 , 2008 

Findings - Financial Statement Aud it 

07-01  Recomm endation - It was recommended that bank reconci l iations include al l  reconci l i ng items and are 
prepared on a month ly basis for al l  cash accounts maintained by the Town , as wel l  as tie i nto the 
general ledger as of m onth-end, and al l  necessary entries should be posted. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was imp lemented . 

07-02 Recommendation - It was recommended that m onth ly  col lateral reports shou ld be prepared and 
closely monitored by the Comptrol ler's Off ice to ensure al l accounts are being correctly col lateral ized 
according to the Town's investment policy and Genera l  M u n icipal Law. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented. 

07-03 Recommendation - It was recommended the Town should establ ish pol ic ies to ensure that i nterfund 
loans are repaid by the close of the year i n  which the advances were m ade. 

Status - We noted this recommendation is in  the process of being i mplemented. 

07-04 Recommendation - It was recom mended that capital assets should be monitored closely and be 
updated month ly for additions and deletions 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented. 

07-05 Recommendation - It was recommended that the Town should ensure that expenditu res are being 
coded to the proper accounts. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented. 

07-06 Recommendation - It was recom mended that closing schedu les should be p repared d i l igently, 
checked to the general ledger and be reviewed by management.  

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented . 

07-07 Recommendation - It was recommended that purchases should fol low protocols establ ished fol lowing 
the g u idel ines set by NYS M unicipal Law and the Town's pol icies and procedures. 

Status - We noted this recommendation is in  the process of being implemented. 

Findings And Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

07-08 Recommendation - It was recommended that the Town ensure that employees entrusted to 
management and administrative positions over Federal awards program (Section 8 Housing Program) 
have the necessary knowledge and expertise to perform these job functions adequately. The Town 
should requ i re extensive tra in ing for employees in these positions. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented. 

07-09 Recommendation - I t  was recommended that federal funds be segregated from other Town cash and 
be deposited in  non-interest bearing accounts. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented . 
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07- 1 0  Recommendation - I t  was recom mended to improve the procedures for annual re-examinations of 
partic ipants within  the Section 8 housing program regard ing uti l ity reimbursements. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented . 

07- 1 1 Recommendation - It was recom mended to improve the procedures regard ing inspections that fai led 
relat ing to residences that receive HAP payments u nder the Section 8 housing program . 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented. 

07- 1 2  Recommendation - I t  was recommended that the Town a l locate payro l l  expenses in  accordance with 
t ime records of the actual t ime spent on each of the federal programs and al locate the correct amounts 
monthly. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented . 

07- 1 3 Recommendation - It was recommended that the Town prepare and submit the reimbursements in a 
t imely m anner in order to receive the money to operate the program efficiently. 

Status - We noted this recommendation was implemented . 
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